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          1  COMMITTEE ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone, and welcome to today's hearing. My name is

          4  Joe Addabbo. I Chair the Civil Service and Labor

          5  Committee Hearing.

          6                 Today's hearing is actually made up

          7  of three committees, not only the Civil Service and

          8  Labor Committee, but also the Contracts Committee,

          9  whose Chair right here is Council Member Yvette

         10  Clarke, and we are also going to be joined by

         11  Council Member Mike McMahon, who chairs the

         12  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management Committee.

         13                 So, you have three committees on this

         14  issue, and basically today's oversight hearing is to

         15  hear issues from both sides to an extent of the

         16  Waste Management of New York labor issues, and to

         17  see if how, if possible, the City Council, can

         18  assist in a quick resolution of the issues at hand.

         19                 I understand that the contract

         20  between Waste Management and Local 813 expired on

         21  November 30th, 2005, and after labor talks and

         22  mediation, workers walked off the job this past

         23  April.

         24                 Now we have additional issues amongst

         25  the others that we'll hear, we have additional
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          2  issues, I understand, of permanent replacement

          3  workers being hired by Waste Management, and,

          4  obviously that is of great concern to us, and I also

          5  understand that these workers are from out-of-state.

          6                 I look forward to hearing the issues

          7  on both sides, and, of course, working with all

          8  parties involved, and my colleagues here, in order,

          9  and, again, in hope to effectuate some type of

         10  resolution, not only for, of course, the workers,

         11  but for those all who are affected by this

         12  situation.

         13                 I'd like to thank the staff of the

         14  Civil Service and Labor Committee, my Policy Analyst

         15  Joan Povolny, to my right here, Howard Gates, the

         16  Legal Counsel, Steve Adenesio, my Legislative Aid. I

         17  will welcome at this point my colleague, who is a

         18  member of the Civil Service and Labor Committee,

         19  Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito. Thank you for

         20  being here.

         21                 And at this point, I'm going to turn

         22  the microphone over to Council Member Yvette Clarke,

         23  Chair of the Contracts Committee, for her statement.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, very

         25  much, Chair Addabbo.
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          2                 Good afternoon, and welcome to

          3  today's joint hearing of three committees,

          4  Sanitation, Civil Service and Labor, and, of course,

          5  contracts.

          6                 My name is Council Member Yvette D.

          7  Clarke, and I'm the Chair of the Contracts

          8  Committee.

          9                 Today, as you've heard, we're

         10  discussing the labor dispute at Waste Management.

         11                 Waste Management is a company that

         12  enjoys City contracts into the hundreds of millions

         13  of dollars, government contracts to haul waste, or

         14  if you will, to spin garbage into gold.

         15                 It has been reported that Waste

         16  Management has taken the position that it can no

         17  longer provide its employees with the compensation

         18  and benefits to make a difficult job, a trying job,

         19  a very important job into a decent job.

         20                 Well, if Waste Management is

         21  listening, I wish to say that I, too, am here to

         22  listen, to learn and to be fair.

         23                 But I also want Waste Management, and

         24  any other similarly situated company to know, that

         25  while New York City is very bullish, very
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          2  pro-business, and we all strive to make it that way,

          3  New York City is today, and will always be, a

          4  pro-union town. And it will always be -- I want us

          5  to just listen right now, because we want to get our

          6  statements out, we want to get the testimony out.

          7  This is a very important hearing, and while I

          8  appreciate the claps, if we can try to restrain

          9  ourselves a bit until we really get into the

         10  substance of the hearing, all in agreement? Thank

         11  you.

         12                 And it will always be a pro-union

         13  town, if I have anything to do with it. Pro business

         14  and pro union, the two are not mutually exclusive.

         15  Industries that experience widescale unionization

         16  thrive because they develop a happy, healthy,

         17  motivated, engaged and loyal workforce. Contented

         18  workers are productive workers. Productive workers,

         19  when utilized by effective, competent management,

         20  are the smartest investment, the most valuable

         21  resource a company can have.

         22                 Is there any great manager out there

         23  that will dispute this? For those of us concerned

         24  about the general welfare of the populous, let us

         25  not lose sight of what it is that we are really
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          2  talking about here. We are not merely talking about

          3  profits, which do have their place, we are also

          4  talking about decent jobs, about economic

          5  development, about the health of our communities,

          6  about self-sufficiency for our people.

          7                 Check your history for the abuses

          8  that gave rise to the historic need for unions.

          9  Unions serve a vital and critical role. When we talk

         10  about unionization, we are talking about social

         11  justice. To paraphrase the great labor leader, Cesar

         12  Shavez: The road to unionization is the road to

         13  social justice. A community is democratic only when

         14  the humblest and weakest people can enjoy the

         15  highest civil, economic and social rights that the

         16  biggest and most powerful possess.

         17                 In my mind, this is the real subject

         18  of today's hearing. Are we building a society that

         19  is fair, that is just, that is truly democratic? One

         20  where both the capitalist and the laborer may

         21  prosper? Or are we building an ultimately futile

         22  society where the capitalist only responsibility to

         23  human resources is exploitation.

         24                 It has been reported that Waste

         25  Management does not want to pay for health coverage,
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          2  that it wants to gouge pension contributions, that

          3  it even wants to do away with the humblest benefit

          4  of extra pay for those who would sacrifice part of

          5  their weekend, which for most people is the time we

          6  spend resting, tending to chores or engaging with

          7  our families.

          8                 It has also been reported that union

          9  leaders have made concessions and that Waste

         10  Management has responded by digging in. Can this be

         11  true? Are we talking about New York City in 2006?

         12  Because that sounds more like something out of

         13  Charles Dickens?

         14                 Can this be the same company that

         15  posted or reported $900 million in profits just last

         16  year alone? Are they really proposing a plan to risk

         17  the health and hurt the golden years of the very

         18  people who actually get out there and pick up the

         19  garbage. What is the rationale and how do tax

         20  dollars play a part in such an irresponsible

         21  formula?

         22                 These are some of the things that I

         23  believe we need to consider. And as we conduct this

         24  hearing and we move on, hopefully to a proper

         25  resolution, let's keep in mind that the words of
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          2  Abraham Lincoln, "Labor is prior to and independent

          3  of capital. Capital is only the fruit of labor, and

          4  could never have existed if labor had not first

          5  existed."

          6                 I think that about sums it up to

          7  Waste Management and to any other companies that

          8  view the labor movement as a mere inconvenience to

          9  be sidestepped or trampled on to the bank. I say,

         10  think again. Human capital is the greatest capital

         11  of all. Do not engage in union busting. Do not lower

         12  the standards, because we all know that union labor

         13  sets the prevailing wage. Lowering standards now is

         14  not right. It is not fair. It is not forward

         15  thinking, and it is not the way that decent people

         16  want this society and this country, this City to

         17  run.

         18                 Before I conclude, I want to thank

         19  everyone who worked on this hearing for your labor.

         20  I want to thank the other chairs, Chair Addabbo and

         21  Chair McMahon, for collaborating on this. I want to

         22  recognize members of the Contracts Committee, some

         23  of how have not arrived as of yet, but I see that we

         24  have been joined by Chair McMahon.

         25                 I want to thank Anita Taylor, my
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          2  right hand, for her help in putting this together. I

          3  want to thank the staff on all the committees who

          4  worked on this. I want to recognize my Policy

          5  Analyst Ms. Sheila Horgan. I want to thank Jake

          6  Hearing from Finance and Dan Serrano, seated to my

          7  left, the Counsel to the Contracts Committee, for

          8  all of their contributions.

          9                 Also, if you'll just indulge me for

         10  another moment, I want to welcome Mr. Yale Brody and

         11  Mrs. Marsha Brody, who are visiting from Chicago.

         12  Are you here, the Brodys? Wonderful. Wonderful.

         13                 Let me explain who these folks are.

         14  Mrs. Brody just retired after four decades as an

         15  English teacher in the Chicago public school system.

         16  And 20 years ago, she was the one who convinced my

         17  Counsel, Daniel, that he should forget about his

         18  plans of dropping out of high school and pursue the

         19  route of higher education for which he is very

         20  grateful, and I might add, so am I.

         21                 I want to thank you, and I want to

         22  turn the Chair back over to Chair Addabbo.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         24  much, Council Member Clarke. Thank you very much for

         25  your statement.
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          2                 At this point I'd like to welcome

          3  also Council Member Mike McMahon, Chair of the

          4  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 I am glad to join with you and

          8  Council Member Clarke in having this hearing,

          9  because like yourselves, I'm very troubled by the

         10  circumstances surrounding the current strike

         11  situation and certainly, as the principal here of

         12  Waste Management is a company that has very, very

         13  large contracts with the City of New York, I think

         14  it's important for us to understand the relationship

         15  between that company and the men and women who are

         16  working and trying to provide for their families and

         17  also maintaining, in many ways, doing work that

         18  maintains our City's cleanliness and our health. And

         19  I think it's important that we have this hearing,

         20  and I think that we will continue to advocate for

         21  working men and women, as we have done in the past

         22  on this issue, as we move forward.

         23                 So, I thank you and Council Member

         24  Clarke for joining with us and we look forward to

         25  the testimony, hearing from the Administration, as
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          2  well as hearing from the workers.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          5  much, Council Member McMahon.

          6                 I also again would like to thank all

          7  the colleagues who are here with us today. Just to

          8  introduce you to them, to my far right, Council

          9  Member Andrew Lanza, Councilman Lanza. To my far

         10  left, Carmen Arroyo. Council Member Hiram

         11  Monserrate. Thank you very much, to our colleagues,

         12  for being here.

         13                 I also want to thank the

         14  Sergeant-At-Arms for arranging, helping us arrange

         15  this room for the hearing. We are going to hear many

         16  issues today, and I want to get to them. Health

         17  benefits, wages, hours, pension, acquisitions that

         18  Waste Management has done with other companies and

         19  the future effects obviously on the workers it has,

         20  sick leave and other issues that are pertaining

         21  directly to the workers, that is what we want to

         22  hear.

         23                 I will also tell you that waste

         24  management was of course invited to this hearing and

         25  it is truly unfortunate that they are not going to
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          2  be here today. And I think it says a lot for them,

          3  and it truly is unfortunate that they are not going

          4  to be here. So, again, I'm not happy about that at

          5  all.

          6                 But our first witness today is Mr.

          7  Thomas McCormack. He is Chair of the New York City

          8  Business Integrity Commission.

          9                 Mr. McCormack, thank you very much

         10  for being here today. Please give your testimony.

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: Thank you. Good

         12  afternoon, Chairpersons Addabbo, McMahon and Clarke

         13  and members of the Committees on Civil Service,

         14  Labor, Sanitation and Solid Waste Management and

         15  Contracts.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         17  testify about the role of the Business Integrity

         18  Commission, BIC, in the Waste Management New York

         19  area labor strike.

         20                 As you know, BIC is a law enforcement

         21  and investigative agency that, among other things,

         22  regulates the private sanitation industry in the

         23  City of New York.

         24                 BIC accomplishes this mission in

         25  three ways, background investigations of applicants
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          2  for licenses and registrations in the private

          3  sanitation industry, criminal investigations and

          4  regulatory enforcement.

          5                 BIC's primary mandate is to ensure

          6  that the private sanitation industry remains free

          7  from organized crime and the corruption that plagued

          8  private carters and their commercial customers in

          9  the decades before the City addressed the problem.

         10                 Waste Management is a private carting

         11  company that holds a BIC license to cart solid waste

         12  and construction debris in the City of New York.

         13                 Until the recent strike, members of

         14  the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local

         15  813, truck drivers, helpers and mechanics, drove

         16  Waste Management's trucks and hauled the garbage of

         17  its commercial customers.

         18                 In the fall of 2005, BIC staff

         19  learned that Waste Management and Local 813 were in

         20  negotiations to renew a labor contract that was said

         21  to expire on November 30, 2005, and that the union

         22  and the company could not agree on certain issues,

         23  despite several meetings.

         24                 A federal mediator was brought in on

         25  November 30th of 2005 and talks extended beyond the
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          2  contract expiration date. Throughout this period,

          3  BIC staff spoke to Waste Management executives and

          4  Local 813 officials concerning the possibility of a

          5  labor strike. BIC told Waste Management and Local

          6  813 that whatever their differences, in the event of

          7  a strike the City's primary concern would be public

          8  health and safety, including assuring the removal of

          9  garbage that posed a health risk and the safety of

         10  the union members and waste management employees.

         11                 In the meantime, BIC urged the

         12  parties to keep talking and asked that they keep us

         13  up-to-date on any developments.

         14                 While I cannot speak to the specific

         15  negotiations between Waste Management and Local 813,

         16  BIC did learn that the parties appeared unable to

         17  reach agreement on issues related to medical

         18  insurance and overtime pay.

         19                 By March the parties remained unable

         20  to reach an agreement, and a strike looked like a

         21  real possibility. At that point, Deputy Mayor Ed

         22  Skyler and I worked with key staff in the Mayor's

         23  Office of Emergency Management and convened a

         24  working group of relevant City agencies, including

         25  the Department of Sanitation, the Department of
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          2  Health and Mental Hygiene, NYPD, FDNY, DoITT, the

          3  Office of Labor Relations, and BIC.

          4                 The group held several meetings and

          5  developed a plan to identify and resolve potential

          6  threats to public health and safety presented by the

          7  strike, including, one, the health and safety hazard

          8  that could be created by garbage left on the

          9  streets, sidewalks and in other locations; two,

         10  ensuring the safety of Local 813 members and Waste

         11  Management employees at potential picket sites; and,

         12  three, a coordinated response to business owners and

         13  the general public's need for information.

         14                 As you likely know, even with the

         15  help of a federal mediator, Waste Management and

         16  Local 813 could not come to terms on a new contract

         17  and the union local called for a strike on April

         18  3rd, 2006 that continues to this day.

         19                 Before the strike was called, Waste

         20  Management informed us that they had arranged to

         21  hire non-union replacement drivers and helpers to

         22  service its approximate 10,000 commercial waste

         23  customers in the event of a strike, and that each

         24  truck would be trailed by a car driven by a private

         25  security guard who would seek to deter, and if
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          2  necessary, document, any interference with the

          3  completion of Waste Management's routes by the

          4  replacement drivers.

          5                 Thus, the City planned to carefully

          6  monitor Waste Management's success in completing its

          7  routes so that it could be in a position to remove

          8  any health hazards that could arise if routes were

          9  missed.

         10                 Many of Waste Management's customers

         11  are restaurants and other generators of putrescible

         12  waste that put their garbage on City sidewalks that

         13  City residents must use to get to work and school,

         14  and to perform any matter of essential personal

         15  business.

         16                 Any accumulation of uncollected

         17  garbage on City streets, sidewalks and commercial

         18  areas where people work, commute and shop, can

         19  quickly create serious health, safety, vector and

         20  even fire hazards to the general public.

         21                 The working group's primary mandate

         22  was to ensure that City residents were not hurt due

         23  to the strike. As in many cases involving public

         24  welfare, our best source of information is the

         25  public. 3-1-1 operators were given detailed
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          2  information about the strike, so that businesses and

          3  other callers would get consistent, accurate

          4  information about trash removal, and OEM worked with

          5  Sanitation and the Health Department to track missed

          6  pick-ups and 3-1-1 calls about potential health

          7  hazards.

          8                 In the first instance, calls about

          9  missed pick-ups were added to a Waste Management hot

         10  line. But if callers reported a substantial back-up

         11  of trash or anything that could potentially be a

         12  health hazard, then the call was routed to the

         13  Health Department, and an inspector was dispatched

         14  to the scene.

         15                 If the inspector determined that the

         16  situation presented a health hazard, then an order

         17  was prepared for the Department of Sanitation to

         18  pick up the garbage.

         19                 Since the strike began, Sanitation

         20  has had to make pick-ups only eight times, because

         21  in most cases, the business also reported the missed

         22  pick-up to Waste Management on their hot line, and

         23  Waste Management would make the pick-up before the

         24  Health Inspector ordered Sanitation to do it.

         25                 Note that in cases where the
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          2  Sanitation Department did make pick-ups, it would

          3  bill the customer at the maximum rate that the rules

          4  allow commercial carters to charge for garbage

          5  collection.

          6                 Another important aspect of the

          7  City's response to the strike has required a balance

          8  between Local 813's right to picket, and the need to

          9  prevent and deter potential unrest as a result of

         10  Waste Management's hiring of replacement drivers to

         11  cover Waste Management's routes and remove garbage

         12  from City streets, sidewalks and other locations.

         13                 From the outset, the working group

         14  notified 9-1-1 that calls could come in regarding

         15  strike activity. The NYPD also maintained a stronger

         16  presence at Waste Management's deployment location

         17  in Brooklyn where Local 813 initially focused its

         18  picketing activity.

         19                 In some cases, picketers followed the

         20  replacement drivers on their routes and picketed

         21  individual stops, and in most cases this activity

         22  proceeded without incident. Though, in some cases it

         23  slowed down completion of a particular route. In

         24  some cases there were confrontations between the

         25  picketers and the replacement staff, and BIC asked
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          2  waste management to instruct the replacement drivers

          3  to call 9-1-1 if drivers were threatened or

          4  harassed.

          5                 Since the strike began, BIC has

          6  received 82 complaints regarding alleged violent,

          7  unruly or threatening behavior on the part of

          8  different people involved in the strike, and NYPD

          9  has made three arrests, two union members and one

         10  company replacement driver.

         11                 In large part, picketing has been

         12  orderly, and after a slow start the replacement

         13  drivers have been able to cover nearly 100 percent

         14  of Waste Management's routes, though we understand

         15  that some customers may have switched to other

         16  carters.

         17                 Overall, the task force approach has

         18  achieved our goal of safeguarding public safety and

         19  welfare during the strike. Since the strike started

         20  nearly three months ago, 3-1-1 has received 431

         21  calls, most from people seeking information. Of

         22  these 431 calls, 171 or 40 percent related to missed

         23  garbage collections.

         24                 But the strike, unfortunately, goes

         25  on. BIC staff continues to get reports from
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          2  management and labor on potential progress in

          3  negotiations, and our role continues to be that of a

          4  law enforcement and regulatory agency whose mission

          5  is to provide for public safety.

          6                 BIC, Sanitation, Health, NYPD and the

          7  other members of the Task Force will sustain this

          8  effort for as long as the situation requires.

          9                 That concludes my prepared testimony.

         10  I will be glad to respond to the Committee's

         11  questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. McCormack,

         13  thank you very much for your time and testimony, and

         14  I'm going to first go to questions from my

         15  colleagues first, and I'll follow-up with any

         16  questions. One that I have, that I've just got to

         17  get out right away is, you've gotten together with

         18  Department of Sanitation, Department of Health,

         19  Mental Hygiene, NYPD, FDNY, DoITT, Office of Labor

         20  Relations, and of course, yourself, to develop a

         21  plan.

         22                 And also, later on in your testimony,

         23  you had mentioned that basically, working with,

         24  talking with Waste Management, and tried to

         25  follow-up with what they were doing; is the
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          2  Administration approving the fact that we have not

          3  so much non-union permanent replacement drivers, but

          4  also these are non-City residents coming in, is the

          5  Administration approving that plan of not using

          6  non-union or permanent replacement drivers coming

          7  in? Are you stamping approval on that plan?

          8                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, I don't know if

          9  it's a matter of our approval or not. We recognize

         10  it was implemented as a temporary measure to get the

         11  company through the strike and to ensure that the

         12  City's garbage was picked up.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: See, my concern

         14  is, you said the word "temporary." I can only hope

         15  it's a very short temporary time period, but I don't

         16  see where the incentive is to negotiate with Local

         17  813 when you have these permanent replacement

         18  workers out there. I think that's a disincentive to

         19  negotiate. And that's what we have to move away

         20  from. We, obviously, need to get these parties to

         21  negotiate so we can resolve these issues, and I

         22  think these replacement workers are doing just the

         23  opposite. I think they're a distraction and not

         24  helping the situation. And I wouldn't want the

         25  Administration to rubber stamp that.
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: I appreciate your

          3  point of view and we're not rubber stamping that. I

          4  think that, as I stated, our concern is for the

          5  public and that the garbage be picked up, and that

          6  Waste Management's deployment of these replacement

          7  workers during the strike period has accomplished

          8  that goal, which we think is very important.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, just for

         10  the record, I would like to get away from those

         11  replacement workers, especially if they don't come

         12  from New York City, you know? But to get away from

         13  those and to do away with those issues that are

         14  going to distract from negotiation and let's look to

         15  promote negotiation.

         16                 MR. McCORMACK: I agree with you,

         17  Chairperson.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         19                 MR. McCORMACK: And our insistence

         20  that the parties continue to negotiate is based in

         21  part on that sentiment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, thank you.

         23                 And before I get to questions from my

         24  colleague, Council Member Clarke, I'd like to

         25  welcome Council Member Nelson, Council Member
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          2  Gallagher, as well.

          3                 Anybody else? No. Council Member

          4  Yvette Clarke.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Chairman Addabbo,

          6  I just wanted to yield my initial questions to

          7  Council Member Hiram Monserrate at this time.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

          9  very much, Chairs, for this very important

         10  Committee.

         11                 For the record, I just want to be

         12  clear, Waste Management is not testifying today; is

         13  that your understanding?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our

         15  understanding is that Waste Management, of course,

         16  was invited to testify, they are not testifying.

         17  They have just submitted a statement to the record,

         18  which I'm not even going to read, is here, but it is

         19  lengthy and I'm not going to read it at this point.

         20  I would have loved to have had them here.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me be

         22  clear on that. I'm sure that Waste Management has

         23  someone here participating, or at least listening. I

         24  just want to say for the record, I think it's

         25  outrageous that Waste Management is not here to
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          2  testify regarding the issue at hand here.

          3                 A company that benefits from hundreds

          4  of millions of dollars of City contracts, for them

          5  not to come into an oversight hearing when this body

          6  engages in our Charter mandated authority to

          7  overview and oversight these issues, for them not to

          8  come here is not only disrespectful to this body but

          9  to the 8 million people that live in this City. And

         10  I think that we should really as a body look into

         11  what measures can be taken or sanctions where we

         12  call companies that get millions of dollars in City

         13  contracts and they won't come and testify and answer

         14  questions as to the performance of those contracts,

         15  I think that I would like to work with my colleagues

         16  now and in the future to ensure that no company

         17  doing business with the City of New York is

         18  permitted just not to participate in oversight

         19  hearings.

         20                 But since we have, Mr. McCormack, is

         21  that correct?

         22                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Your name

         24  is Mr. McCormack.

         25                 I have some understanding of the
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          2  Business Integrity Commission, and I have a few

          3  questions for you.

          4                 One is that I believe, correct me if

          5  I'm incorrect, your agency does not deal directly

          6  with the negotiations; is that not correct?

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: That is correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. And

          9  I also understand that the first day of the strike

         10  that representatives of your office or your

         11  commission were on site?

         12                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, and thereafter as

         13  well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And I also

         15  understand that agents from your office,

         16  representatives, were videotaping the strikers; is

         17  that not correct?

         18                 MR. McCORMACK: That is not true.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Is not

         20  true.

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: We did not videotape

         22  anyone.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Do you

         24  know who was videotaping?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: No. Fair

          3  enough.

          4                 The other question with respect to

          5  the strike, which began approximately at 3:00 a.m.;

          6  isn't that correct?

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: I believe that's

          8  right, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. And

         10  before the strike happened, was your office in

         11  communication with Waste Management?

         12                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And can

         14  you share with us the context of that conversation?

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: We were in contact

         16  with both Waste Management and the union, and with

         17  both parties we had dialogue about continuing the

         18  negotiations.

         19                 We also needed to have certain

         20  information to be prepared for a strike, factual

         21  information, so that we could inform the Police

         22  Department, the other agencies that had to

         23  participate, and ourselves, as to how the City was

         24  going to react.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And who
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          2  did you speak to?

          3                 MR. McCORMACK: In Waste Management?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: In Waste

          5  Management, yes.

          6                 MR. McCORMACK: I don't know that I

          7  spoke to anyone -- I think I spoke directly to John

          8  Morris, who is the Regional Vice President.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Some of

         10  the things that have come to light here and have

         11  been brought to my attention are perhaps

         12  relationships that might or might not exist between

         13  the Business Integrity Commission and the people who

         14  are now working with or for Waste Management.

         15                 Particularly a gentleman by the name

         16  of Anthony Farnetti. Do you know this gentleman?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes. Anthony Farnetti

         18  is a retired New York City Police Department

         19  detective, who at one point had been assigned in the

         20  Police Department to the Organized Crime

         21  Investigation Division.

         22                 The Organized Crime Investigation

         23  Division, known as OCID, is the section of the

         24  Police Department that deploys a squad of police

         25  detectives to help the Commission do its work.
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          2                 At some point when the Commission was

          3  first started, it was known as the Trade Waste

          4  Commission, you'll recall, Mr. Farnetti was one of

          5  the detectives who was deployed by the NYPD to work

          6  along with the Trade Waste Commission while

          7  continuing to be a police officer.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. So,

          9  he worked with what is clearly the predecessor of

         10  the Business Integrity Commission?

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, he

         13  worked with that unit and now he works for Waste

         14  Management?

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: My understanding is

         16  that he retired as a police officer and at some

         17  point after his retirement began, he was hired by

         18  Waste Management.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, one of

         20  the questions that has been raised, obviously you

         21  could understand why there would be questions raised

         22  by in particular those who are on the other side of

         23  the picket line, for a potential conflict that can

         24  or cannot exist, right? Someone who was formerly

         25  involved, had an intimate knowledge of how the
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          2  Commission works and now is working for management,

          3  what's your relationship with him, professional

          4  relationship?

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: At this point I see

          6  him as an employee of Waste Management. I think in

          7  his dealings with me he seems himself that way. I

          8  have no special relationship to him. I have no

          9  friendship with him.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. Was

         11  there a conversation with him that night before the

         12  strike, before the 3:00 a.m. strike? Was he one of

         13  the individuals you had discussed this with?

         14                 MR. McCORMACK: I may have spoken to

         15  him, or staff at BIC may have spoken to him to get

         16  some information.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. I

         18  will tell you this then. I have also gotten

         19  complaints from the locals that are involved,

         20  because I think at one of the sites they had their

         21  sound permit pulled there was all types of concerns

         22  about what type of relationships might have been

         23  used to stifle their constitutionally protected

         24  right to strike, to picket, and to engage in First

         25  Amendment Activity.
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: As far as security

          3  goes concerning this strike, we dealt directly with

          4  the NYPD. We did not deal with Waste Management

          5  security people. We understood that they were there.

          6  We have a general idea of what they do, but we

          7  didn't coordinate with them. We simply asked them

          8  for information, as we would in any situation where

          9  we, as the regulator need to have information.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And during

         11  the course of your testimony right now, you outlined

         12  the following: 431 calls were made to 3-1-1

         13  regarding general information, specifically 171 were

         14  made for missed garbage collections.

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes. Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Primarily

         17  in Manhattan, Brooklyn, do you know?

         18                 MR. McCORMACK: Oh, I would say in

         19  different boroughs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So at

         21  least 171 complaints that we can point to, there

         22  were probably many more that weren't made, because

         23  that's usually the case, but 171 missed garbage

         24  collections complaints came in through the 3-1-1

         25  system.
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Would you

          4  consider that to be a health hazard?

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: It wasn't a health

          6  hazard because we attended to it immediately.

          7                 Had we not attended to it

          8  immediately, it would have been a health hazard.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, who

         10  attended to it?

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, when the calls

         12  first came in, they were routed to the Waste

         13  Management hot line for them to redeploy these

         14  drivers.

         15                 If we got a complaint that there was

         16  a lot of garbage being stored at a site, we

         17  immediately, the Task Force immediately sent a

         18  health inspector to that site.

         19                 If the health inspector deemed that

         20  situation to be an emergency, there are these

         21  emergency procedures by which Health tells

         22  Sanitation to go out and take a look and pick up the

         23  garbage.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: How many

         25  cases do we have of that?
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: I think I stated it. I

          3  don't have it off the top of my head.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: We received 431 calls.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: Mostly from people

          8  seeking information.

          9                 We found there were 171 complaints

         10  where the garbage was missed, and then when the

         11  Sanitation Department acted on some of those

         12  reports, they found, I think I mentioned it before,

         13  a very small number, eight cases where the garbage

         14  was not picked up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, eight

         16  cases that garbage was not picked up and Sanitation

         17  came and picked it up. Was there a citation issued

         18  to someone?

         19                 MR. McCORMACK: No. What happens in

         20  that case is that the Sanitation Department picks up

         21  the garbage and then bills the customer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The

         23  customer being the store owner?

         24                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: But isn't
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          2  the store owner already paying waste management to

          3  pick up the garbage?

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: He would not pay for

          5  that service. That day. He would not have to pay

          6  because they hadn't picked up the garbage that day.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So that's

          8  how it works? It's a per pick-up payment plan? I

          9  thought it was a contract?

         10                 MR. McCORMACK: Most customers do not

         11  have contracts with their carters.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         13                 MR. McCORMACK: And the bills are

         14  calculated on the number of times that the garbage

         15  is picked up.

         16                 So that if you were going to delete a

         17  certain bill, you would simply state that on a

         18  certain day garbage was not picked up and therefore

         19  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And the

         21  fee is the same schedule exactly as Management's?

         22                 MR. McCORMACK: No. What happens in

         23  this case is that the City charges the rate that the

         24  law allows it. The maximum rate that the law allows

         25  the carter to charge.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The

          3  private restaurant or store owner probably winds up

          4  paying more for that pick-up?

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: It may be that way. It

          6  may not be.

          7                 In most cases, I'm sure you're aware,

          8  restaurants tend to pay at the maximum rate because

          9  their garbage is heavy, and they cost the carting

         10  companies a lot of money to dump.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And for

         12  these missed pick-ups, does the Business Integrity

         13  Commission issue fines or subject any type of

         14  penalties to the company that was supposed to have

         15  done the pick-up and didn't do it?

         16                 MR. McCORMACK: We haven't decided to

         17  do that yet. We're in the midst of a strike. I don't

         18  know that that's what we will do. It's an issue that

         19  we can revisit, though.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me get

         21  this straight.

         22                 I don't know, the Commission is

         23  charged with enforcing, right? You're in law

         24  enforcement, right?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: If the

          3  company, it could be Waste Management, it could be

          4  any company, it could be ABC company.

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I just

          7  don't want to target it to Waste Management.

          8                 MR. McCORMACK: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: It happens

         10  to be that they're the company now, but it could be

         11  any company.

         12                 So, there is a strike, they hire

         13  out-of-town strikers, non-union workers to come in

         14  and hold the trash. If they miss stops, the City has

         15  to send inspectors first, then we send City

         16  Sanitation that will pick up the garbage, right,

         17  which we pay for, then they get billed, and Waste

         18  Management, who was supposed to have picked it up

         19  didn't go pick it up. No citations and no penalty

         20  for not doing what they're supposed to be doing?

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: As I've said, I don't

         22  believe we've made a judgment yet what we're going

         23  to do in that case.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: We're in the middle of
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          2  a strike.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: No, I

          4  understand.

          5                 Besides that, I'm trying to say, you

          6  know, I don't profess to be the smartest, most

          7  educated person in the world, I have a bachelor's

          8  degree, it's from CUNY, Queens College, it's a good

          9  place.

         10                 MR. McCORMACK: So do I.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Oh, fellow

         12  alum.

         13                 But you know, I'm coming back to a

         14  basic point here. We have a company that is not

         15  doing their job, right? You monitor them. You are

         16  charged with that responsibility. You're supposed to

         17  be enforcing regulations, but, yet, there have been

         18  no sanctions for a company that didn't do what they

         19  were supposed to do.

         20                 MR. McCORMACK: These are generally

         21  called service complaints.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         23                 MR. McCORMACK: And the way that

         24  they're resolved, mostly, it happens with many

         25  different carters, is that if the Commission gets a
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          2  complaint that a service has been missed allegedly,

          3  we communicate with the carting company, if they go

          4  back and fix it --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: All right.

          6  You just testified you had eight cases where they

          7  went back and they didn't fix it and the City went

          8  and picked it up.

          9                 MR. McCORMACK: The City went there

         10  first and did it, because it was an emergency.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You didn't

         12  want it to stink up the neighborhood and block

         13  traffic and present all these health hazards.

         14                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, let me

         16  ask you this, let me make it simpler, what can you

         17  do? What are the powers that your Commission have?

         18                 In other words, I know that you're

         19  still making this judgment, and I appreciate that.

         20                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: But what

         22  can you do? What is under your authority to do to

         23  ABC company if they're neglecting to do what they're

         24  supposed to?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: If we find that
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          2  there's an egregious pattern of a lack of service,

          3  we may consider a violation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          5  Within your power to issue a violation.

          6                 MR. McCORMACK: We may have the power

          7  to issue a violation, if we can find an egregious

          8  pattern of non-service.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. But

         10  it has to be egregious?

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, it has to be

         12  something --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Is that

         14  spelled out in the regulations?

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: No, I'm paraphrasing

         16  it. I'm giving you --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         18  Well, then I'm going to wrap up my questions because

         19  I know that the chairs have been very kind to allow

         20  me to continue this.

         21                 I want to ask for the record that you

         22  provide for us so that we are more educated on what

         23  the powers of the Business Integrity Commission are.

         24                 We would like to see what your rules

         25  and regulations are, particularly in respect to
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          2  Waste Management hauling, so that we can also help

          3  determine what are the teeth that your agency has.

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: What I'll do that

          5  maybe is better, I'll give you a specific reading on

          6  that point. I'll get back to you and let you know

          7  exactly what our reading of the law is on that

          8  point.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, I

         10  appreciate that. But on the record I'm making a

         11  formal request that you provide for these committees

         12  a copy of your rules and regulations.

         13                 MR. McCORMACK: You'll get them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So that we

         15  have a better understanding of the authorities of

         16  your Commission.

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: You will have that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just to add on

         21  something that Council Member Monserrate had

         22  requested, I also request that you also follow-up

         23  with us regarding your final decision on what to do

         24  with Waste Management, because Council Member

         25  Monserrate brings up a fine issue about somebody not
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          2  doing their job and not getting a slap on the wrist

          3  for it.

          4                 And to my earlier point of even, you

          5  know, again, augmenting this problem by hiring what

          6  some would consider permanent replacement workers, I

          7  think is a problem.

          8                 So, again, your follow-up is greatly

          9  appreciated.

         10                 MR. McCORMACK: Certainly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         12  Clarke.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair. I just wanted to take a moment to acknowledge

         15  that we've been joined by additional colleagues. At

         16  this time we have been joined by Rosie Mendez of

         17  Manhattan, Mike Nelson of Brooklyn, Council Member

         18  Jessica Lappin of Manhattan. And I just wanted to

         19  jump into a couple of questions here.

         20                 First of all, thank you for coming

         21  and testifying here today. I want to know whether

         22  through the Business Integrity Commission you would

         23  agree that Waste Management's actions here have at

         24  least the appearance of union busting?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: I don't know if it's
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          2  union busting. I don't know that. I can't say that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Let me just put

          4  it this way.

          5                 You set the time line since your

          6  intervention in this whole process, and it spans

          7  over a year now, or close to it. And we've seen

          8  union workers on strike, and we've seen temporary

          9  workers and an effective sort of emergency

         10  management plan established by the City of New York,

         11  while these workers are being put in place.

         12                 I'm not an expert either, Council

         13  Member Monserrate, but it would seem to me that that

         14  would send up a red flag for this Administration,

         15  considering the fact that so much of the work in

         16  this industry is done by union labor, and you don't

         17  have any barometer or reading on whether this is at

         18  least, at least the appearance of union busting?

         19                 MR. McCORMACK: No, I don't because we

         20  see the use of the replacement workers as a means to

         21  keep the City streets clean during the strike.

         22                 At this point I don't know anything

         23  more about that. You set a time line by which you

         24  think that it must be brought to the attention of

         25  the people of the City of New York who pay through
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          2  contracts for this service, and how long we're going

          3  to allow this company to use permanent replacement

          4  workers in the City of New York?

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: We have not set a

          6  deadline on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay, I think

          8  that that's important, and I'll tell you why.

          9                 I think it's important because I

         10  understand that the City is currently in

         11  negotiations with Waste Management for a $300

         12  million contract, and if the tax dollars of the

         13  people of the City of New York means that homes and

         14  families are going to be displaced, because we're

         15  bringing in replacement workers from out of the City

         16  of New York, because we want to make sure that this

         17  City is, you know, kept orderly, I think it behooves

         18  us as a City to take a look at what percentage of

         19  our contracts are being done by Waste Management and

         20  whether in fact we need to continue doing business

         21  with them.

         22                 They are not here today to answer

         23  questions. They're in the middle of a negotiation

         24  with us for $300 million. This is not a bonanza.

         25  This is not a Lotto. We need to get in the mix here
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          2  because families are being hurt, as we sit here in

          3  our City. And it's their tax money.

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: I take your point,

          5  Chairperson. And we want to see the strike resolved,

          6  as well. I would love to see these people go back to

          7  work. I have no reason to want to see them deprived

          8  of jobs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I just wanted to

         10  find out what the apparatus is in this town at this

         11  time for us to be able to get to the table with the

         12  appropriate authorities. And I don't mean to vent on

         13  you, but unfortunately, you're the person who is

         14  here.

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: I very much realize

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And I think that

         18  everyone really needs to get their buts in gear

         19  around this situation. It is really, really bad.

         20                 Particularly when hundreds of

         21  millions of dollars in contracting from us is going

         22  into -- it's like a feeding situation here.

         23                 MR. McCORMACK: I appreciate your

         24  position, as well. But please keep in mind that BIC

         25  is a regulatory criminal investigative agency, and
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          2  we are essentially involved in determining who

          3  should hold licenses in the City with respect to

          4  organized crime involvement and so forth.

          5                 We're not primarily involved. We're

          6  not primarily involved in negotiative type activity.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Let me ask, is it

          8  not true that there are other companies like Allied,

          9  IESI and other union haulers that could do Waste

         10  Management's share during the strike?

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, and they're free

         12  to compete.

         13                 They're always free to compete.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay, so in terms

         15  of this upcoming contract that we have right now,

         16  why is it that we have not looked at these

         17  alternatives in the bidding process while this

         18  process is going on?

         19                 MR. McCORMACK: Chairperson, I can't

         20  speak to the contracts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Right.

         22                 MR. McCORMACK: We issue a license and

         23  they're free to do business with the City or private

         24  entities.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And you have no
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          2  gateway to conversations around this situation as

          3  the Chair of the Business Integrity Commission?

          4                 It would seem to me, if we're talking

          5  about business integrity and we find that there is

          6  some failing, some failing to meet the standard of

          7  integrity in this town, I mean what are we talking

          8  about in terms of integrity? We can, you know, be so

          9  stuck in our box that we're not realizing what is

         10  actually happening to the workers in this situation.

         11  Where is the integrity in that?

         12                 My question to you is, do you have a

         13  voice in this situation so that we are not going

         14  down the path of feeding a situation that is growing

         15  each and every day to the demise of the workers in

         16  this industry?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: Do I have a voice in

         18  the determination of the contracts or?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: You said that

         20  there has been some sort of working group in your

         21  testimony.

         22                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And I'm assuming

         24  that your voice in that working group is as valid as

         25  anyone else's. It may be even more so because you
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          2  chair the Business Integrity Commission. There's a

          3  breach of integrity here. It is very clear. And so

          4  when you're in that working group situation, and I

          5  brought to your attention as the Chair of the

          6  Contracts Committee something that I know about a

          7  $300 million contract being negotiated as we sit

          8  here. Who throws up the red flag if it's not the

          9  Business Integrity  Commission?

         10                 MR. McCORMACK: I take your point. The

         11  working group to this point has been concentrating

         12  on the public health issue.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: We need to move

         14  it because the public health issue becomes even more

         15  so a problem when we have working men and women in

         16  this town who can't feed their families, who can't

         17  maintain their mortgages, who don't have great

         18  health care. That is where the rubber meets the

         19  road.

         20                 Let me just ask one more question. Is

         21  the Administration concerned that Waste Management's

         22  tactics here could lower the prevailing wage in the

         23  industry.

         24                 MR. McCORMACK: I would say that if we

         25  had evidence to that we would be concerned. I don't
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          2  know. I can't sit here and tell you that that's

          3  happening.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: My question to

          5  you was, is the Administration concerned that it

          6  could happen, and not is it happening.

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: I think the

          8  Administration is concerned that working men and

          9  women get a fair shake.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And that we could

         11  be seeing an erosion of prevailing wage through this

         12  process of hiring non-union labor from out of town

         13  who may not be as familiar with prevailing wage laws

         14  in this town who would work for peanuts without

         15  health care benefits, without pension, just to have

         16  a job in this town; we're not concerned about that?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: I take your point.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay.

         19                 Mr. Chair, I'm finished for right

         20  now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Clarke.

         23                 Before I get to the questions from

         24  Council Member Vann, I'm also going to add another

         25  request of you, again, alluded to earlier by Council
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          2  Member Clarke, broaden the scope of that working

          3  group that you have formed, broaden the scope. You

          4  know, just to have a tunnelvision and look at just

          5  the health-related issue, again, is not going to do

          6  much in helping to resolve this issue. That group

          7  needs to broaden its scope and look at the worker

          8  issues, look at the issues at hand, and, again, in

          9  looking to help resolve what we have here as a

         10  serious problem.

         11                 Councilman McMahon.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 Mr. McCormack, good afternoon. I just

         15  want to thank you and your staff, Ms. Ryan, who have

         16  been very responsive on unrelated issues today --

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: -- Throughout

         19  the communities in this City of New York.

         20                 MR. McCORMACK: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And responding

         22  to quality of life complaints that constituents

         23  have, it's a good relationship that we've

         24  established.

         25                 Regarding today's issue, a great
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          2  concern I have, and you underscored, as you said it,

          3  the Administration's concern about working men and

          4  women having good contracts, the thing from a waste

          5  management perspective, solid waste management, not

          6  waste management perspective that I have is that I

          7  believe the City brings about 30 to 40 percent of

          8  its residential waste to Waste Management transfer

          9  facilities, the contracts are about $100 million,

         10  and yet the City decided to have the union,

         11  Department of Sanitation drivers, cross the picket

         12  lines to deliver City residential waste to Waste

         13  Management transfer stations, when it could have

         14  chosen to go to other facilities and brought that

         15  pressure on this situation, and I think really put a

         16  focus on it, and perhaps precipitated the settlement

         17  of this dispute that I think everyone in this room

         18  agrees would be advantageous, not only to the

         19  workers here, their families, to the City of New

         20  York, to the customers of Waste Management, and make

         21  your life and my life a lot easier as we sit here

         22  today.

         23                 So, why didn't the City bring that

         24  pressure to bear on this situation?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: Mr. McMahon, I can't
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          2  comment on the Department of Sanitation policy. I

          3  don't know the answer to that question.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Certainly, and I

          5  appreciate that, but seen in terms of this greater

          6  working group that was set out, and that's a good

          7  management tool and I commend the Administration for

          8  doing that, and certainly averting a crisis is a

          9  good thing, but at the same time if the concern is

         10  sort of across agencies to deal with this, and to

         11  bring an expeditious end to this strike, it would

         12  seem that -- I'm sure that that decision was not

         13  made not just by the Commissioner of the Department

         14  of Sanitation, that that was made at a higher level,

         15  was it discussed perhaps that that may be a tool to

         16  bring a more speedy resolution of this issue?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: If there were those

         18  discussions, I was not a party to them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Let me ask you

         20  this: Regarding the replacement drivers, certainly

         21  they need to have a Class B license, they need to be

         22  qualified to do that; how do we know that all of

         23  these replacement drivers and workers are

         24  quote/unquote qualified as they should be?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, the Commission's
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          2  authority with regard to the employees of the

          3  carting companies is limited, even in the case

          4  involving carting companies who are hiring permanent

          5  people.

          6                 They're obliged, the applicants for a

          7  license, the renewal, are obliged to supply us with

          8  the identities of the people, and we may check our

          9  own records, but we cannot do things like criminal

         10  background checks and things along that line.

         11                 We are not determining the aptitude

         12  of the driver, we're simply taking a look at whether

         13  we know of him in some context that would tend to

         14  give us pause.

         15                 And we did that in the case of the

         16  replacement drivers, and to the same degree that we

         17  would do it with respect to the permitted workers

         18  for a carting company.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You don't verify

         20  their qualifications for the job?

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: No. The law does not

         22  allow us to go into their resumes or anything of the

         23  kind. We're simply checking their names and our own

         24  records to see if we know that they may have had

         25  problems in the past.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Whether they

          3  have any notoriety.

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But even in

          6  regular instances you don't verify the

          7  qualifications?

          8                 MR. McCORMACK: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It's up to the

         10  individual company to?

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: It's considered a

         12  private employment matter, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. Were any

         14  of the replacement drivers, were any of them refused

         15  the ability to work? Did any of them have notoriety

         16  within your system?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And then lastly,

         19  one issue as you described that there was a health

         20  emergency was issued, and City agencies sprang into

         21  action and did I guess what the people of the City

         22  of New York would expect in the case of a health

         23  emergency. But why was that health care emergency

         24  declared eight hours before the strike began?

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, I don't think
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          2  that you're referring to the emergencies that I'm

          3  referring to. I'm talking about the emergencies on

          4  the street where garbage was not collected, those

          5  emergencies weren't declared until the health

          6  inspectors found them.

          7                 I think you might be referring to

          8  something else, I'm not sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It was my

         10  understanding that the City reached a decision

         11  collectively with the work group that you described

         12  to declare a situation, a health emergency, that

         13  needed to have the system put into place that you

         14  described, yet it was my understanding it was done

         15  before the actual strike began. Am I incorrect in

         16  that?

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: I'm not aware of that.

         18                 I'm aware of the situations in which

         19  garbage was found on the street.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Individual

         21  crises.

         22                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, that is what I'm

         23  aware of.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Could you go

         25  back and look at that?
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: I will.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You said there

          4  was some information that you would follow up, and

          5  then follow-up with the Committee chairs and let us

          6  know when it was that that decision was made.

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: Surely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Because that

          9  will certainly help us analyze what the overall

         10  situation --

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And, again,

         13  thank you for your appearance today.

         14                 MR. McCORMACK: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         16  Councilman McMahon.

         17                 Just a note on not knowing who is

         18  driving our trucks with these replacement workers.

         19  That's of great concern to us here in the City. We

         20  know what we have in our union workers. We know

         21  pretty much their backgrounds. We know they're good

         22  people for the most part. Now we have undocumented

         23  to an extent, you know, no background checks on

         24  these permanent replacement workers, you know, who

         25  really, I understand most of them, or a lot of them
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          2  don't even come from New York State. That's a major

          3  concern.

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, I think they're

          5  all good people, and I think that what we find out

          6  about them is equivalent to what we found out about

          7  the replacement drivers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You just said no

          9  background checks were done on the replacement

         10  workers.

         11                 MR. McCORMACK: No, no. What I said is

         12  that we don't do background investigations of any

         13  workers per se. We don't check their criminal

         14  backgrounds, because the law doesn't allow us to do

         15  that.

         16                 But we do check with the records we

         17  have as to whether we've had any information about

         18  people, and we do that with regard to permanent

         19  workers, as well as in this case replacement

         20  workers.

         21                 The same vetting was done in both

         22  cases is what I'm saying.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, questions

         24  from Melissa Mark-Viverito.

         25                 Council Member.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes,

          3  thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm sorry I had to step out,

          4  but I'm also on the budget negotiating team, so I'm

          5  kind of up and down.

          6                 But I just wanted to -- so, my

          7  questions may have been asked, so I apologize if

          8  that's the case.

          9                 First of all, I did want to just say

         10  that clearly, based on what has been expressed here

         11  by the Chairs and by my colleagues is that this is a

         12  very disgraceful situation that we're finding

         13  ourselves in, a company posting a billion dollar

         14  profit, really trying to break the back of a union,

         15  trying to cut back on pay and on benefits, and

         16  clearly that is something that we, as a body, do not

         17  accept, and we as a City should not be accepting in

         18  any way.

         19                 Being the case that you also do

         20  represent I guess the Administration to some extent,

         21  and maybe this is a little bit outside of the scope

         22  of your immediate responsibility, but I wanted to

         23  understand a little bit about where currently the

         24  contract between the City and Waste Management lies?

         25                 My understanding is that recently as
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          2  of a couple of months that that contract was up for

          3  renewal; are you aware of that?

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: I don't get involved

          5  in those things. I'm sorry.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

          7  So, you don't know if the City of New York in this

          8  contract with Waste Management is, in fact,

          9  negotiating at all to renew that contract?

         10                 MR. McCORMACK: We don't know that,

         11  no.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: You

         13  don't know that, okay. Because I think that that is

         14  something also that would be important for this body

         15  to be aware of, talking about $350 million contract

         16  potentially more, if the Mayor's Solid Waste

         17  Management Plan is adopted, and as such, I mean

         18  that's clearly a level of oversight that I think we

         19  can play. So, that's of immediate concern, and that

         20  at the moment was my question, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         22  much, Council member.

         23                 Council Member Lappin.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 As a member of the Sanitation

          3  Committee, I'm wondering why the Sanitation

          4  Commissioner isn't here? Do you know why?

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: I do not know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Certainly he

          7  was invited to come and testify.

          8                 I guess I just want to state for the

          9  record, it's the Sanitation Commissioner who urged

         10  the Mayor to declare a health emergency, as I guess

         11  you testified to. It's the Sanitation Commissioner

         12  who is working to negotiate a contract with Waste

         13  Management. It's the Sanitation Commissioner who is

         14  the one who made the decision to descend trucks to

         15  other transfer stations and to force those workers

         16  to cross the picket line. So, I find it a little bit

         17  surprising that the Sanitation Commissioner isn't

         18  here, because he could answer those questions.

         19                 That said, I had a question for Mr.

         20  Coleman, or maybe you could answer the question, as

         21  to why Mr. Coleman was at the strike site at four in

         22  the morning the day the strike started?

         23                 MR. McCORMACK: I don't think I know

         24  who Mr. Coleman is.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:
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          2  Cohen. Cohen.

          3                 MR. McCORMACK: Mr. Cohen is here.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Right. He is

          5  sitting right there in the front row in the purple

          6  shirt.

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: Our job was to take a

          8  look at what was going on there, and Mr. Cohen was

          9  there I think on many occasions. He spoke to people

         10  in the company and he spoke to people in the union.

         11  Our job was to make sure that everything was okay

         12  there, and the police were there and so were we.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, who

         14  contacted Mr. Cohen to send him to the site?

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: We were aware that

         16  there was a strike. It was part of our plan that he

         17  or someone working for him would be there to observe

         18  what was going on. We were concerned.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So you sent

         20  him there.

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, you could say I

         22  sent him there. Sure, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay, thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just for the
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          2  record, Commissioner, Commissioner Doherty of

          3  Sanitation was invited, and chose not to attend.

          4  And, again, that's unfortunate.

          5                 Council Member Mendez has a question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Chairperson

          7  McCormack, right?

          8                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I'm reading

         10  over your testimony, I apologize, I got here a

         11  little late, and it says that BIC is -- on the first

         12  page, BIC is a law enforcement and investigative

         13  agency, that among other things regulates the

         14  private sanitation industry of the City of New York,

         15  and then it lists in the several ways.

         16                 So, if that is the function of BIC,

         17  how could you not know that eight hours prior this

         18  City issued an emergency that required temporary

         19  replacement workers, or permanent -- it's an

         20  oxymoran to me anyway, come to pick up garbage in

         21  this City? How could you and your agency not know

         22  that?

         23                 MR. McCORMACK: Well, do you have that

         24  order that I could take a look at?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I don't have
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          2  that order, but I do recall when that happened,

          3  making some inquiries and the Administration did in

          4  fact confirm that.

          5                 MR. McCORMACK: I'd need to take

          6  another look at it, I'm sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.

          8                 Now, New York City procurement laws

          9  hold that the labor relations history of a company

         10  should be considered when a contract is awarded; is

         11  that correct?

         12                 MR. McCORMACK: I believe so, but I'm

         13  not in the business of issuing contracts.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.

         15                 Let's assume that it's correct,

         16  because it is, given Waste Management's current

         17  negative labor relations, should they be excluded

         18  from future New York City contracts?

         19                 MR. McCORMACK: I can't answer that

         20  because I don't issue the contracts.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well, don't

         22  you think that different agencies within New York

         23  City should be working collaboratively so that

         24  agencies such as this don't get a windfall from the

         25  City while doing such employment practices?
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          2                 MR. McCORMACK: I think that agencies

          3  should work collaboratively, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Mendez.

          8                 I also want to welcome, to my far

          9  left, Council Member John Liu.

         10                 Just a last couple of questions, Mr.

         11  McCormack.

         12                 Has Waste Management been on your

         13  radar screen as far as in the past? Any violations

         14  issued, any concerns you had with Waste Management

         15  at all? Have they ever been on your radar screen?

         16                 MR. McCORMACK: I think all carting

         17  companies get violations, and they have gotten some.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Is there ever

         19  any record, or can you forward any record with

         20  regarding over the last, you know, three years?

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes, we could do that?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We could?

         23                 Again, just to reiterate those

         24  requests made earlier again, we would love to have

         25  you follow-up your final decisions on Waste
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          2  Management and not doing their job, and, again, that

          3  your working group get a little broader. Identify

          4  those health issues relating to the City is

          5  important, but I think the issues that are related

          6  to here with regard to negotiations and those

          7  incentives to negotiate so that this issue may be

          8  resolved are also of paramount importance.

          9                 So, I wish that, again, that scope of

         10  that group get broadened as well.

         11                 There being no other questions, I

         12  want to thank you very much.

         13                 MR. McCORMACK: There are two things I

         14  need to clarify.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry?

         16                 MR. McCORMACK: There are two things I

         17  would like to clarify. I recall some of the things I

         18  said I may have misstated.

         19                 First, it is the Health Department

         20  that declares emergencies, not the Department of

         21  Sanitation. Someone might have said that and I

         22  didn't react to it, and I apologize to that.

         23                 Secondly, in going over the vetting

         24  that we use to look at drivers for companies, I

         25  should have mentioned, I think someone asked me and
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          2  I didn't directly answer it, we do check to see that

          3  people who drive trucks for garbage companies are

          4  licensed, that they're properly licensed by the

          5  Motor Vehicle Department.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          7  much. We have a last quick follow-up from Council

          8  Member Monserrate.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair, for imposing my inquisitiveness.

         11                 I have one last question regarding an

         12  incident that occurred with a company, IESI, which

         13  is obviously one of the other haulers.

         14                 As I understand, they sent a letter

         15  to some of the businesses offering to pick up their

         16  trash if Waste Management was incapable of doing it.

         17                 MR. McCORMACK: Mm-hmm.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And that

         19  your agency ordered them to send the second letter

         20  rescinding that offer. Is that true? And if so, why?

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: We asked them to

         22  clarify their position. Our concern with respect to

         23  licensed carting companies taking the customers of

         24  other carters is that if certain of those customers

         25  are in contract with carter A, we will say, and some
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          2  customers prefer contracts, we do not wish to see

          3  the customer implicated in any sort of torturous

          4  interference case.

          5                 When a licensed carter signs a

          6  contract with a customer, that contract is valid for

          7  two years.

          8                 If the customer wishes to back out of

          9  that contract, the carter may sue or can sue and we

         10  generally advise carters that if they are going to

         11  take the customers of other carters, which is a form

         12  of competition that the Commission was established

         13  to promote, they should not do anything to place the

         14  customers in any kind of legal jeopardy.

         15                 And, so, if a company wants to take

         16  away customers from another company who are not in

         17  contract, then they're free to do that and that's

         18  competition.

         19                 If they try to take away customers

         20  who are in contract, there may be a lawsuit, and we

         21  feel a need to protect the customer. We don't want

         22  to see the customer brought into that type of

         23  litigation?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: It's a

         25  little confusing, because I think your prior
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          2  testimony said most of the businesses don't have a

          3  contract and it's kind of day-to-day.

          4                 MR. McCORMACK: No. I'm saying, but

          5  most is not all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          7                 MR. McCORMACK: And so there are

          8  certain customers who prefer contracts.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, your

         10  testimony today is if these other companies send

         11  letters to people who are being serviced currently

         12  by Waste Management, and Waste Management is not

         13  capable of doing on-time pick-ups, then it's okay

         14  for them to send those letters, is it not?

         15                 MR. McCORMACK: We would advise people

         16  not to get customers involved in litigation. That is

         17  all our position says.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: If they

         19  don't have a contract then they can't be involved in

         20  litigation, right?

         21                 MR. McCORMACK: Correct. Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So then

         23  the other companies are free to send those letters,

         24  as long as there's no contract in place.

         25                 MR. McCORMACK: Yes. That is
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          2  completely correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

          4  thank you. I appreciate the clarity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          6  much, Council Member Monserrate.

          7                 Council Member Clarke.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 I just wanted to simply close by

         11  asking Chairman McCormack, that you really take a

         12  look at your position in this working group. The

         13  City of New York relies on the Business Integrity

         14  Commission to uphold a standard of integrity, and

         15  there has to be someone at the table as we proceed

         16  that adds value to what is a concern about how we're

         17  utilizing City tax levy dollars to feed an untenable

         18  situation.

         19                 If there isn't a lack of integrity in

         20  what this City is currently doing and engaging in

         21  with respect to this particular industry, then we

         22  can say we've done our jobs.

         23                 However, if we continue to be myopic

         24  and use lenses to avoid seeing the inevitable here,

         25  then we are doing a disservice to the people of the
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          2  City of New York. We will find copycats in other

          3  industries and it's going to become a major problem.

          4  The Genie is out of the bottle here, and I think

          5  it's important that as you sit at the table with the

          6  strength and power of the Business Integrity

          7  Commission, that you bring a wider lens to the view

          8  on what is happening here.

          9                 And certainly I know that this body

         10  is going to be requesting that more and more and

         11  more. We are not finished with this issue by any

         12  stretch. So, it's my hope that you will take what

         13  you've heard today, which is very valid,

         14  particularly in the scope of your commission, and

         15  raise them with the appropriate entities that should

         16  have been here to answer these questions today, so

         17  that we can move forward and get a positive

         18  resolution with respect to this matter.

         19                 I, as Chair of the Contracts

         20  Committee, will continue to look at what's happening

         21  with these contracts, specifically the contract that

         22  is currently being negotiated, and I don't know how

         23  much of a wide lens we need to start examining

         24  contracts, but there is obviously a serious

         25  integrity issue here, and I hope that you will take
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          2  what has been said here today and use it to address

          3  what has been an atrocity against the human resource

          4  development of this City.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          7                 Mr. McCormack, again, thank you for

          8  your time and your testimony today. And we also look

          9  forward -- just trying to check, is Waste Management

         10  in the house yet? Just checking. You never know.

         11                 Okay, we're going to start to call up

         12  panels of four.

         13                 Ladies and gentlemen, in all respect

         14  to everyone who wants to testify, we are going to

         15  use a clock of two minutes. This will allow time for

         16  everyone to testify and allow time for questions and

         17  answers, as well. So, I do appreciate your following

         18  the clock of two minutes. We do want to get in

         19  everyone.

         20                 So, the first panel is Michael

         21  Hellstrom. Please step forward to the witness stand.

         22  Eugene Eisner, please step forward. Again, Eugene

         23  Eisner, Vincent Alba Panama, and Lou Romeo, please.

         24                 I want to thank this panel for being

         25  here today. If you can all just state your name for
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          2  the record and then give your testimony, please.

          3                 MR. EISNER: My name is Eugene Eisner.

          4  I am Counsel to Local 813. I want to thank the

          5  members of the Council for holding this hearing

          6  today. I think so far it's been very informative,

          7  and I appreciated many of the questions that have

          8  been asked by members of the Council, and I think

          9  that you have in a sense preempted a lot of the

         10  testimony that in fact will make our job a lot

         11  easier.

         12                 What I'd like to do, instead of

         13  giving you my prepared testimony, which is being

         14  handed out right now, is follow-up on some of the

         15  questions that were asked by members of the Council,

         16  which I don't think were fully or completely

         17  answered or were evasive answers were given by the

         18  BIC Commissioner.

         19                 For example, when Council Member

         20  Clarke asked a question about contracts and

         21  prevailing rates, I'd like to point out to you that

         22  Local 813 does set the prevailing rate in the

         23  carting industry, and we have done so, for the last

         24  20 years. Our contract is on file with the

         25  Comptroller's Office and with the hiring of these
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          2  replacement workers, and they are not paying the

          3  prevailing rate, we have filed a complaint with the

          4  Comptroller's Office, and we believe that those

          5  contracts, which I have examined, should be broken

          6  by the City of New York, because the contracts

          7  themselves providing, if they don't pay the

          8  prevailing rate, those contracts can be broken. So,

          9  that's so much for those contracts.

         10                 Secondly, when Commissioner McCormack

         11  was talking about the role of the BIC, he kept

         12  stressing that their mandate is to do background

         13  investigation, criminal investigation, how did they

         14  get involved, why did he get involved in this group,

         15  this working group? And why did he get involved in

         16  the health hazard or picking up garbage? That's not

         17  the role of the BIC.

         18                 Councilman Monserrate asked for

         19  copies of the City Trade Waste Commission and the

         20  BIC rules, we have them here. We have examined them

         21  very carefully. We know that the BIC, as you have

         22  hinted very broadly, Councilman, they've gone way

         23  beyond their jurisdiction in terms of what they've

         24  done here. And we don't like what they've done, and

         25  you picked up on it very carefully.
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          2                 The last answer that the Commissioner

          3  gave about why didn't they pick up garbage, tortuous

          4  interference, even though there is no contract,

          5  that's totally nonsense. Even where there is a

          6  contract, the contract provides that the contracts

          7  can be broken, if through an act of God or through a

          8  labor dispute.

          9                 So, that the answer that he gave was

         10  a total nonsense answer. They were advising

         11  customers to protect the customers? What role of the

         12  BIC is it to protect customers? That's not their

         13  function. He himself testified about their

         14  regulatory function for licensing and investigation,

         15  to advise customers in the City of New York. That's

         16  outrageous for BIC to get involved in that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry, if I

         18  can just ask you to wrap up?

         19                 MR. EISNER: Yes. So, finally, what I

         20  would like to say is that somebody asked the

         21  question, I forget, maybe it was Councilwoman

         22  Lappin, about how did the City get involved in

         23  issuing an order prior to the strike for Sanitation

         24  to issue an order?

         25                 The Commissioner said he was not
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          2  aware of any such order. We have the order. It is

          3  true that Sanitation, as he corrected himself,

          4  Sanitation did not issue the order, but the order

          5  was issued by the Department of Health. And why did

          6  the Department of Health issue the order, for the

          7  Department of Sanitation Teamsters to cross our

          8  picket lines, to pick up the garbage at the transfer

          9  stations? Because it says in the order the

         10  Department of Sanitation has reported to the

         11  Department of Health that there are no alternative

         12  transfer facilities available. That is totally a

         13  lie.

         14                 There are many, many transfer

         15  stations available. Mike Hellstrom here will tell

         16  you how many are available, he's from Local 108 of

         17  the Laborers.

         18                 So that why didn't Sanitation look

         19  into the question if alternative transfer stations

         20  were available? Well, why didn't the Department of

         21  Health look into the question of whether alternative

         22  transfer stations were available.

         23                 They issued this order because they

         24  were out to help Waste Management and the City of

         25  New York should not stand for that. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Point well taken, Mer. Eisner. I just

          5  want everyone to know that the Mayor's

          6  Administration is still in the room taking notes, so

          7  the bottom line is whatever is said today, again,

          8  will go back to the Administration, and we will work

          9  with the Administration and actually address some of

         10  the issues even raised by Mr. Eisner just now. So,

         11  thank you very much.

         12                 MR. EISNER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I thank the

         14  Administration for being here.

         15                 Please state your name and give your

         16  testimony, please.

         17                 MR. HELLSTROM: Mike Hellstrom,

         18  Business Manager of Laborers Local Union 108, and

         19  Vice President of the Mason Tenderers District

         20  Council of Greater New York.

         21                 The thing that's going on here, very

         22  simply, and I have submitted written testimony also,

         23  but I'll just do a little add-libbing here. And

         24  thank you, by the way, all the Chairs of all the

         25  different Committees, Labor, Contracts and
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          2  Sanitation, distinguished members that are up here

          3  who took time out of your busy day to listen to

          4  common folk, you know, working folk here in New York

          5  City. You know, and we are the backbone of the City,

          6  have been for a long time.

          7                 I, myself, am a proud union member

          8  for 25 years, and know a bad contractor when I see

          9  one, and I think it's really important and relevant

         10  that the smugness of Waste Management to actually

         11  deny the invitation and reject the invitation that

         12  was given to them to come here and give testimony in

         13  person when they hold $350 million worth of City

         14  contracts, is a complete 100 percent disrespectful

         15  move, not just to the people in this room, but to

         16  every citizen of New York City, and I mean that.

         17                 Waste Management has a monopoly over

         18  transferring of New York City residential trash.

         19  Council Member McMahon had pointed out that about 30

         20  or 40 percent of that trash goes through Waste

         21  Management transfer stations. It's more like 70

         22  percent of that trash goes through Waste

         23  Management's transfer stations, whether in Brooklyn,

         24  Queens, the Bronx and some trash is actually being

         25  exported to New Jersey to an additional Waste
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          2  Management facility.

          3                 Waste Management in their smugness,

          4  can hold the City hostage. It does not care what

          5  happens to working class people. It does not care

          6  what the electeds think about their corporation, and

          7  we need to start the process of busting up the

          8  monopoly that Waste Management is holding over every

          9  single citizen inside this City.

         10                 The BIC comes in and talks about free

         11  market enterprise, and free market competition. You

         12  cannot compete when you have somebody like Waste

         13  Management in your marketplace that is charging the

         14  City upwards of $95 a ton to be able to export

         15  residential trash being created inside this City of

         16  which 12,000 tons on a daily basis is generated.

         17                 Do the math, ladies and gentlemen,

         18  they're the only ones in the City that has the

         19  capacity to handle New York City's trash problems.

         20                 With that being said, like my

         21  counterpart Gene Eisner said, on the day of the

         22  strike, companies like IESI, Allied or BFI, other

         23  corporations who maintain transfer station capacity

         24  inside this City, already under contract with both

         25  the Laborers Union and the Teamsters Union to the
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          2  new standards that we needed to be able to continue

          3  to provide health insurance, pension benefits,

          4  overtime rights, and job protection rights, could

          5  have easily accepted every drop of trash that was

          6  generated by the City, to, like the Council members

          7  has pointed out, to put pressure on top of Waste

          8  Management to end this strike quickly and

          9  decisively, so that a fair and equitable agreement

         10  was reached for the workers, and for the taxpayers

         11  of this City at some point.

         12                 We stand here today committed towards

         13  our fight for justice. We will continue to fight. We

         14  look towards the help from the elected officials

         15  inside New York City's government to help us with

         16  our plight. We have always been able to handle our

         17  problems privately, but today we have a Walmart

         18  amongst us, and it's called Waste Management.

         19                 We're worried about Walmart coming

         20  into New York City? We have one, it's called Waste

         21  Management. Waste Management wants to erode 75 years

         22  of progress in the private sanitation industry.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Hellstrom. Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. ROMEO: Good afternoon, and thank

          3  you for hearing us today. My name is Lou Romeo. I'm

          4  a Business Agent with Teamsters Local 813, and we're

          5  here today for your help.

          6                 I just want to talk about the BIC a

          7  little bit, because my testimony is going to be a

          8  little bit, well actually a lot different because I

          9  came here a nervous man, but now I became an angry

         10  man because I heard the razzle dazzle that this guy

         11  was fueling into you people, and you have to

         12  understand that it's not the truth.

         13                 Waste Management lost customers that

         14  it decided to lose because it was not profitable.

         15  They would go down the street that they would pass

         16  by stuff that weren't profitable and pick up the guy

         17  next door. So, maybe that's where those missed

         18  pick-ups came into play. They used the New York City

         19  Police Department, the BIC Commission, and the

         20  Sanitation Department to break us. The only thing

         21  that they want to do here is break the union. That's

         22  the whole story here. We thought it was, you know,

         23  an unfair negotiation, a tough negotiation on the

         24  onset, but we now realize what their agenda is.

         25  Their agenda is to take New York down and that will
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          2  follow suit throughout the country, this way they

          3  can become union-free.

          4                 They used the Teamsters and the

          5  Laborers, again, I'll repeat this, to get rid of the

          6  trash they didn't want, the contracts that they

          7  didn't want, because they weren't profitable. They

          8  used us to facilitate their needs here, and I think

          9  with the help of the City Council, you'll be able to

         10  rectify that and look into this and give us a shot

         11  here.

         12                 We have 110, 120 guys out of work

         13  here. All New York City residents, all okay with the

         14  New York City BIC Commission, which I call the "No

         15  Show Commission," because I haven't seen them since

         16  1993 when I got into this industry, and all of a

         17  sudden in 2006, 2005, they show up to Waste

         18  Management, to protect them, and what about the

         19  customer? They didn't care about the customers.

         20                 Okay, he talked about videotaping.

         21  They did videotape. As a matter of fact, on that

         22  evening, a couple of our members walked over to the

         23  truck that they were using, this lens that they

         24  could shoot the SuperBowl with, and the BIC officers

         25  threatened to shoot the three individuals that
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          2  approached that vehicle.

          3                 And when I went down to make the

          4  complaint to a sergeant, who happened to be standing

          5  on the picket line in the 90th Precinct, it took me

          6  15 minutes for him to investigate the threat of a

          7  gun being in that individual's car. They did not

          8  want to go over to that vehicle and find out what

          9  was going on.

         10                 Finally, they did. They went over

         11  there. They came back and they told us that it was a

         12  New York City detective, and they were monitoring us

         13  and all that good stuff.

         14                 Shortly after that, Mr. Cohen, who I

         15  believe is the Assistant Commissioner to the BIC,

         16  came there and asked if we wanted to file a

         17  complaint. I have relatives on the New York City

         18  Police Department, we weren't going to wage war with

         19  the New York City Police Department, we just kind of

         20  swept it under the rug. But what he told you today

         21  in his testimony was a lie.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Romeo, just

         23  a question. I don't mean to interrupt, but when you

         24  said shoot, is that video shoot or --

         25                 MR. ROMEO: No, no, no, no, no. Nine
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          2  millimeter 16 in a shot shoot you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          4                 MR. ROMEO: He threatened to do it.

          5                 And, again, the New York City Police

          6  Department did not want to respond to that because

          7  they knew it was sitting on that corner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.

          9                 And you were assured that the

         10  videotaping was done by BIC?

         11                 MR. ROMEO: We watched them hold the

         12  camera.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         14                 MR. ROMEO: As a matter of fact, if

         15  you want the license plate and the make of the

         16  vehicle, I have it for you today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         18                 MR. ROMEO: I guess lastly, I think we

         19  kind of wrapped everything up.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, we're

         21  going to have questions. We're going to have

         22  questions.

         23                 MR. ROMEO: I think I'm good. Thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, just on
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          2  the videotaping, just before we get to your

          3  testimony, sir, the videotaping, BIC, or was it

          4  NYPD?

          5                 MR. HELLSTROM: No, videotaping.

          6                 MR. ROMEO: BIC. That was confirmed by

          7  Mr. Cohen, sitting here today, that it was his BIC

          8  officer, and they were surveiling us to make sure

          9  that we were law abiding citizens. We were law

         10  abiding citizens.

         11                 Hang on, Mike. They mentioned three

         12  arrests. He mentioned three arrests. What Waste

         13  Management was instructed to do, or they instructed

         14  their off-duty New York City police officers, about

         15  150 in staff that they hired to protect the scab

         16  workers coming from out of town, they instructed

         17  them to make phony phone calls to the 9-1-1 switch

         18  board saying that it was a 1013, officer needed

         19  assistance, this way they would respond to our

         20  ambulatory picketing in a hurry. But, yet, when we

         21  called, the union called on Waste Management, we had

         22  to wait 20 minutes to a half hour for someone to

         23  show up, and then when we talked to them about our

         24  plight or whatever it was, they says, well, you

         25  never been cut off before? Or this never happened to
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          2  you before? Everything was downplayed on our side,

          3  but upscaled on their side. The three arrests, two

          4  of which were from the union, which were trumped up

          5  charges, the Waste Management scab that was arrested

          6  actually pulled out a knife and went after one of

          7  our men, and we've been law-abiding peaceful

          8  picketers since this thing started, and we intend to

          9  keep it that way until this strike is over.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's going to

         11  help. Thank you very much, Mr. Romeo.

         12                 Vincent, your testimony, please.

         13                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: Yes. My name is

         14  Vincente Alba-Panama. I'm a Business Agent and

         15  Political Action Director for Local 108.

         16                 I also submitted written testimony,

         17  just a couple of highlights that I want, because

         18  what's taking place in the City of New York is

         19  clearly union busting at its very best.

         20                 The cost of resolving our contract

         21  disputes are less than $1 million over the

         22  three-year life of the contract.

         23                 On May the 5th, the CEO of Waste

         24  Management announced to the stockholders that they

         25  had spent as of May 5th, $25 million on the strike
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          2  in the City of New York, and the way they spend it

          3  is because, you talk about back space bargaining? In

          4  December they brought 150 replacement workers, paid

          5  their hotels, paid their salaries, $100 a day bonus,

          6  and $34 a day for food stipend.

          7                 Meanwhile, let me go back to early

          8  negotiation of Waste Management, which Mike

          9  Hellstrom and I attended, and the question of Waste

         10  Management was very simply, why do the immigrant

         11  workers need health insurance?

         12                 And the question wasn't answered

         13  because Mike stopped me from answering it in the way

         14  that it should have been, a real ass whipping, okay?

         15  But the 12 men who are on strike in Truckston Street

         16  (phonetic), are all immigrant documented workers.

         17  And that attitude is the attitude reflected about

         18  their workforce.

         19                 Five years ago we want on a run

         20  against Waste Management and Varrick Street Transfer

         21  Station. Very interesting, the BIC, with all its

         22  integrity issues, doesn't look at the integrity of

         23  the company waste management, signing contracts with

         24  corrupt individuals who have been banned for life

         25  from organizations, such as the Teamsters, for
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          2  corruption. That's who they have a contract with at

          3  the Varrick Street facility.

          4                 Three years ago, we were again forced

          5  to go out and strike at the Truckston Street

          6  facility, okay? At that time they told us, yes, we

          7  are making plenty of profits, but unfortunately for

          8  your men, we have to invest in the equipment and in

          9  the facility so we have no money from you.

         10                 We come to the present day

         11  negotiations where we ask them, why are you doing

         12  this? They tell us because we can. That is the short

         13  version of negotiation history between Waste

         14  Management and reputable hard-working labor unions,

         15  such as teamsters Local 813, and Laborers 108.

         16                 Thank you. The rest of my testimony

         17  is written.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         19  much. Thank you very much, Mr. Panama.

         20                 We do have a couple of questions from

         21  my colleagues.

         22                 I'd like to ask, what is the next

         23  step? Is there anything scheduled as far as

         24  negotiation talks, or anything on the table at this

         25  point?
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          2                 MR. EISNER: There are no negotiations

          3  scheduled with the Teamsters. There are no

          4  negotiations scheduled. I think the federal mediator

          5  is here in the room, and we are subject to the call

          6  of the federal mediator.

          7                 The last time we met the union, Local

          8  813, made substantial concessions. For example,

          9  historically, Local 813 members never paid a nickel

         10  for their own health plan. Now, they're prepared to

         11  pay substantial amounts every week. Waste Management

         12  rejected that proposal.

         13                 Historically, under our contracts for

         14  over 50 years, there was always overtime after eight

         15  hours. Management said we're not going to pay

         16  overtime after hours. We made that concession. As

         17  long as we get, we get a six day, we get overtime we

         18  said - we're not going to guarantee you overtime -

         19  in order to afford the amount of money they want the

         20  men to pay for their health insurance, $400 a month.

         21  They gave them a $30 wage increase a week, and they

         22  want $400 a month to pay for the health insurance.

         23  It's outrageous.

         24                 So, we said, okay, give us a

         25  guarantee that we could work overtime on that six
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          2  day, and we can afford to pay for the health

          3  insurance, well, maybe we'll consider paying more.

          4  We're not going to give you any guarantee. We said,

          5  okay, you don't like the word "guarantee," give us

          6  some assurance that we will continue to work the six

          7  day; we can't give you an assurance. We caucused

          8  again. We come back, we say, okay, tell you what,

          9  why don't you put in writing that you won't

         10  deliberately schedule work as to deny us overtime;

         11  they wouldn't give us that.

         12                 So, that's where we are. Every time

         13  we have made a proposal concession, they have flatly

         14  rejected it. And we've gone to the men with a

         15  current proposal of the company, and the men

         16  unanimously rejected, saying I'd rather remain on

         17  strike, I'd rather go on welfare than take the offer

         18  that the company is making.

         19                 Okay?

         20                 MR. HELLSTROM: Real quickly, for the

         21  Laborers Union. We are being permanently replaced,

         22  so as far as our negotiations with the company is

         23  concerned, there are no negotiations.

         24                 We weren't really even given an

         25  opportunity to get our negotiations off the ground

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  because of the dispute the company was having with

          3  our brothers, the Teamsters, and us wanting, and

          4  having to show some level of solidarity between

          5  trade labor unions dealing with the same company,

          6  when it comes to health insurance, we find it ironic

          7  that the company will pay itself $620 a month

          8  towards the company's health insurance plan, which

          9  is the actual contribution needed by Laborers Local

         10  108, to maintain health insurance out of Local 108's

         11  health insurance plan.

         12                 When we suggested to the company that

         13  we would accept their 620 to cap their cost, you

         14  know, they came back on a counter and said they

         15  would only pay $550 to the union's health insurance

         16  plan.

         17                 And, again, you know, we find it

         18  ironic that our members, my brother Vincente Alba

         19  stated, are 100 percent Latino immigrants that are

         20  working and residing in the South Bronx, and are now

         21  being permanently replaced with outsiders from Ohio

         22  and other parts of the country, and it's disgusting

         23  what's going on in New York City, as far as Waste

         24  Management's business is concerned.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very
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          2  much. I believe we've been joined by Council Member

          3  Yassky.

          4                 I believe he has a question?

          5                 Council Member Yassky.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I'm not

          7  sure that I have much to add to the presentation

          8  that's been made, to tell you the truth. It is, you

          9  used the word "disgusting," it is disgusting. And

         10  you know, I've been to, twice now to the Waste

         11  Management site in Brooklyn where your members are,

         12  you know, dedicatedly walking that picket line, and

         13  I've heard people suggest, you know, there's a

         14  private dispute, the government is not involved.

         15  Well, first of all, Waste Management hauls, what 7

         16  million tons -- 1,000 tons a day, and what share of

         17  the City's trash is that?

         18                 MR. HELLSTROM: That 7,000 tons that I

         19  speak about is completely 100 percent residential

         20  trash, generated by the taxpayers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And in fact

         22  collected by the Department of Sanitation then

         23  turned over.

         24                 MR. HELLSTROM: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So that's
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          2  probably about half, I would say.

          3                 MR. HELLSTROM: The City generates on

          4  an average of 12,000 tons a day residential trash.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Right. So,

          6  it's a little bit more than half.

          7                 MR. HELLSTROM: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, Waste

          9  Management is an integral part of the City's

         10  collection system.

         11                 And was it you that gave the figure

         12  $30 million for how much the Waste Management is

         13  spending on this?

         14                 MR. HELLSTROM: It was my brother

         15  Vincente Alba, but that's a correct statement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And what's the

         17  cost of the health care contribution?

         18                 MR. HELLSTROM: Well, from what I

         19  understand in my conversations, and if I could speak

         20  on behalf of the Teamsters, it probably would have

         21  equaled without a wage increase, about $650,000 in

         22  year one, to be able to continue health insurance

         23  through the Local 813 health insurance plan, and for

         24  our 12 members in the Bronx, you're talking about

         25  12,000 bucks a month.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, it's not

          3  even about economics and somebody coming and saying

          4  this is not sustainable. It's union, it's trying to

          5  bust the union.

          6                 MR. HELLSTROM: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And I don't

          8  think it's a dispute that the City is supposed to be

          9  neutral in and the government is supposed to be

         10  neutral in. I think the City is supposed to be on

         11  the side of the working men and women who keep the

         12  City running. And I just want you and your members

         13  to know, that as far at least as I'm concerned, I'm

         14  sure it's true of this Committee, we stand with you.

         15                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: Thank you.

         16                 MR. HELLSTROM: Thank you.

         17                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: I want to thank all

         18  the members of the Committee. I want to say, just to

         19  be very clear, the City has not been neutral, which

         20  is part of the testimony we're laying on the table.

         21  That's why we come to the legislative arm of City

         22  government, to ask for the intervention, because the

         23  Administrative side of the Executive Side of City

         24  government by any standards is in total collusion

         25  with Waste Management in having the strike go on.
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          2                 I mean, they gave them permits, a

          3  variance, health variance, eight hours before the

          4  strike to make sure that Waste Management got all

          5  the City sanitation garbage. They are using New York

          6  City police officers, okay, and allowing them to

          7  function as personal body guards to Waste

          8  Management.

          9                 There are questions of integrity, at

         10  least from where I've heard, where the Commissioner

         11  of Sanitation is related to people that own

         12  substantial amount of Waste Management shares.

         13                 MR. HELLSTROM: If I could maybe just

         14  point something out that maybe the Council members

         15  are not aware of? The Department of Sanitation and

         16  the City of New York launched a public service

         17  campaign earlier this -- late spring, early summer

         18  with the dance group Stomp, Waste Management, and

         19  Keep America Beautiful to keep New York City

         20  litter-free for 2006. And virtually every New York

         21  City Department of Sanitation truck right now is

         22  being driven around through City neighborhoods with

         23  this PSA announcement on the side of government, you

         24  know, City trucks with Waste Management logos on

         25  these ads, and I think that the City as a whole
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          2  needs to ask itself one simple question: Is it

          3  really Waste Management that it wants to be a

          4  partner with after hearing the testimony that we

          5  have been able to provide with you today. That's the

          6  question that needs to be answered. Is this a

          7  partnership worth upholding here?

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         10                 MR. ROMEO: We're union members, we're

         11  running. I've got to take these clothes off and get

         12  back on the picket line, so, you know.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Shortly.

         14                 Council Member Clarke.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair. And please excuse me, juggling many things

         17  today, both budget negotiations and an Education

         18  hearing next door. But I did want to raise a couple

         19  of questions because I'm very intrigued by how this

         20  whole situation has unfolded, and the fact that

         21  there seems to be a slippery slope here. You know,

         22  it seems as though the City of New York was fully

         23  conscious of the fact that Waste Management was

         24  going to make this move.

         25                 They were also so conscious so that
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          2  they put emergency management plan in place, but

          3  sort of had a blind eye to the impact on the workers

          4  and what Waste Management's next move would be in

          5  terms of actually bringing in replacement workers.

          6                 So, the question at the heart of it

          7  becomes, has this become an accepted practice in the

          8  City of New York? And it's not only an accepted

          9  practice here with this specific concern, but how

         10  far will it reach and can it reach? My question is

         11  this appears like a slippery slope.

         12                 What are some of the likely

         13  consequences, not only for your unions, but also for

         14  other unions and for labor in general, organized and

         15  unorganized, if Waste Management were allowed to

         16  prevail here? And I would like to get your opinions

         17  on that.

         18                 MR. EISNER: Mike, do you want to

         19  address that?

         20                 MR. HELLSTROM: I mean, if Waste

         21  Management is allowed to prevail in putting forth

         22  the radical changes, and we'll use the word

         23  "radical" here, as Trade Labor Unionist in the

         24  Trade Labor Movement, we understand that times are

         25  changing around us. We understand that the days of
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          2  no-cost health insurance are probably coming to an

          3  end. And we understand some aspects of business. I

          4  mean, somebody has to give us some credit. We

          5  negotiate contracts for a living, this is what we

          6  do, right? So we kind of deal with these issues on a

          7  daily basis.

          8                 I know that the Laborers Union, and I

          9  believe that the Teamsters Union have tried to

         10  approach Waste Management, and I have actually

         11  gotten Waste Management to agree in other markets

         12  outside, in the New York, Greater New York

         13  Metropolitan area, to reallocation of wages, future

         14  wage increases to go back inside union's health

         15  insurance plans. You know, so that the union is able

         16  to maintain control of its chief staple, and its

         17  chief staple is health insurance these days. And I'm

         18  not ashamed to say it is what it is.

         19                 If Waste Management is allowed to

         20  radically change our environment in New York City,

         21  it would have an impact on over 3,000 workers. Not

         22  just 100 striking workers, because every other

         23  contractor under contract is going to want the same

         24  exact thing, and the problem here is that both the

         25  Laborers Union and the Teamsters and the Teamsters
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          2  don't like this sometimes, but laborers do operate

          3  garbage trucks in New York City also for private

          4  carters, and we try to maintain each other standards

          5  here as some level of cooperation, because the

          6  standard is what it is and the Teamsters have set

          7  that standard, would gut our standards so severely,

          8  it would set people back years. It would actually

          9  take people out of the middle class.

         10                 Private sanitation industry is one

         11  industry that garbage has generated here every day.

         12  It must be handled here locally, it cannot be taken

         13  out of the City. So, it's important to us to

         14  maintain some level of a standard.

         15                 Waste Management wanting us to go

         16  from zero to $400 a month, it's like buying a car

         17  you can never drive. You know?

         18                 Waste Management wanting helpers to

         19  come on the truck at $16 an hour when the current

         20  scale for helper is about $23 an hour, that's

         21  shortchanging that next worker that's looking to

         22  come into this industry to feed his family and buy a

         23  home in New York City and send his kids off to

         24  college. He won't be able to do it on a $16 an hour

         25  wage, you know? And the free market enterprise is
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          2  what it is. And Waste Management maintains 10,000

          3  customers in New York City.

          4                 The thing I like to point out is

          5  that, we missed some names here, and maybe Jess

          6  Guerillo and John Morris, and I think you heard the

          7  Commissioner from the BIC use the name John Morris.

          8  In our negotiations with them, in our discussions

          9  with them, and I know the Teamsters had the same

         10  discussion, in saying that, if we are not able to

         11  resolve our problems internally, you will force us

         12  to bring this problem before the elected officials,

         13  and other support groups throughout the City that we

         14  have connections to. And their simple response was,

         15  bring it on. Bring it on. I mean, what do you do

         16  when somebody tells you to bring it on? You try to

         17  cooperate. You try to talk to that person. You say

         18  you sure you want us to do this? Bring it on. But

         19  that's part of the reason why they're not here

         20  today, because they don't care whether we bring it

         21  on or not. That's because they maintain a monopoly

         22  in New York City.

         23                 MR. EISNER: By the way, just to

         24  follow-up on Council Member Clarke's question about

         25  what the impact would be, not only here in New York

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  City but for the rest of the labor movement, which

          3  is really looking. I think you said at the outset of

          4  this hearing, New York City is a union town, and if

          5  Waste Management can break Local 813 in a union

          6  town, I'll bet you the rest of this country is

          7  looking at this the same way that the rest of the

          8  country looked at when Reagan broke the air

          9  controller strike in 1980, the rest of the country

         10  followed. And I've been a labor lawyer for 40 years,

         11  and I want to tell you, ever since 1980, it has

         12  never been the same, because industry followed

         13  Reagan's idea about replacement, and that's what's

         14  going on in Waste Management now. So, we cannot

         15  permit that to happen, and we urge you to take

         16  whatever action you can take and conduct an

         17  investigation into this matter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I just have one

         19  more question, Mr. Chair. And I don't know whether

         20  we've acknowledged that Council Member Barron is

         21  here already, Council Member Barron of Brooklyn.

         22                 My final question is, what, if

         23  anything, do you believe the City can do about the

         24  current conditions given the legal context of the

         25  way in which these services are procured?
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          2                 You talked about the monopoly issue.

          3  We all talked about what we know about the

          4  negotiated $350 million contract right now. We also

          5  talked about the other entities that are out there

          6  that could possibly compete in this area, but we

          7  understand that there is a certain amount of

          8  preeminence with respect to Waste Management in the

          9  transfer station business, and just give us some

         10  idea about what the City can do with respect to the

         11  ways in which these services are procured?

         12                 MR. HELLSTROM: I'm not political

         13  operative, by the way, so I'm not sure how to answer

         14  that question. But I will say that I have seen

         15  significant legislation come out of this Chamber,

         16  whether it be living wage legislation, and other

         17  worker protections that have come out of this

         18  Chamber already.

         19                 I believe that it's essential that

         20  City government forces legislation immediately to

         21  tell Waste Management and other companies like Waste

         22  Management, if you do business with the City, you

         23  cannot permanently replace workers when engaged in a

         24  lawful strike. Because being that they have that

         25  ability to permanently replace us, and still collect
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          2  taxpayers' dollars? I mean, I think one of the

          3  Council members suggested before that there should

          4  be some fines for not showing up at a hearing such

          5  as this when you're doing business with the City.

          6  Well, the same thing should be worked into every

          7  single City contract, that if you have a union,

          8  we're not going to tell you whether you have to

          9  agree to the terms and conditions of the demands of

         10  the union. That's your business. But you cannot

         11  permanently replace those workers while engaged with

         12  the City of New York. That's what must be done in

         13  order to stop Waste Management's assault on us

         14  today. That's what you can do today for us.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: I think that they're

         17  all so pretty self-confident. I mean, so

         18  self-confident they don't need anybody to show, that

         19  they're going to continue to hold these City

         20  contracts.

         21                 I think that the oversight of those

         22  contracts is extremely important, in that people and

         23  corporations that conduct themselves in the fashion

         24  in which Waste Management has conducted itself for

         25  the City of New York up to this very moment should
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          2  be grounds to disqualify them from having any

          3  service with the City of New York.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Questions from Council Member Mendez

          7  and Council Member Barron.

          8                 First Council Member Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Mr. Alba, I

         10  think you gave testimony that Waste Management

         11  alleges it spent $25 million on the strike?

         12                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: As of May the 5th.

         13  We estimate somewhere it's closer to probably 40

         14  million by now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And you've

         16  been able to verify these numbers?

         17                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: They admitted it.

         18  It's not what we're saying, this is what CEO Waste

         19  Management told his stockholders in his

         20  stockholders' meeting in Houston on May 5th.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And I can't

         22  recall who gave testimony, but is it correct that if

         23  they had negotiated and signed a contract, it would

         24  have cost them just 650,000 extra a year; is that

         25  correct?
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          2                 MR. HELLSTROM: It's actually over

          3  three years.

          4                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: Over three-year

          5  contract, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Over three

          7  years.

          8                 MR. HELLSTROM: Over three years.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Now, I think

         10  the answer is clear to me, but why are they willing

         11  to spend so much short term?

         12                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: I think that they

         13  are looking at the real possibility that they could

         14  recover 25, 40 million, 50 million, 75 million once

         15  New York is a non-union town, and monopolize the

         16  market.

         17                 MR. HELLSTROM: Could I just add to

         18  that?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes.

         20                 MR. HELLSTROM: You know, when I look

         21  at corporations and the waste industry, I say to

         22  myself, why are they in New York City?

         23                 Well, when you speak to corporations

         24  in the waste industry in New York City, they tell

         25  you that we are in New York City because New York
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          2  City is the largest waste-producing market in the

          3  country, and corporations such as Waste Management

          4  are waiting, and hoping that one day that because of

          5  fiscal crunches in the City, and outsourcing of work

          6  by City government, that they may be the ones that

          7  would step in to start picking up residential trash

          8  in the City of New York.

          9                 They have approached this Chamber and

         10  the body before about franchising of certain market

         11  areas or certain districts in the City, and being

         12  able to cast a bid to be the only proprietor in that

         13  area that will be able to service the commercial

         14  customers in those areas, which were flatly

         15  rejected, because it would kill free market

         16  enterprise.

         17                 The company I think what Panama said

         18  is true, and what Romeo had said and Gene Eisner,

         19  this is about union busting. If they can get it done

         20  in New York City, keep this in mind, folks, the

         21  labor movement is under attack across the country.

         22  New York City is the last fertile battleground for

         23  companies like Waste Management to wage war with

         24  unionized workers to make way for Walmarts and other

         25  big non-union corporations to want access into this
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          2  marketplace.

          3                 If they beat us here, they beat us

          4  everywhere. And I think that's really why they would

          5  be willing to invest 30 or 40 or 50 or $100 million.

          6  And then you have to say to yourself, if they made a

          7  billion dollars in profit in 2004 and a billion

          8  dollars profit in 2005, $100 million is nothing to

          9  them at the end of the day.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. HELLSTROM: Thank you.

         13                 MR. EISNER: By the way, Council

         14  Member Mendez, there is a worker who is prepared to

         15  testify here today who traveled to Houston to the

         16  stockholders' meeting and he confronted the CEO of

         17  Waste Management and asked him that precise

         18  question, about if it would only cost $600,000 over

         19  a period of three years, and you've already spent

         20  $25 million on the strike, why are you doing it? And

         21  I hope that the Council, Chair Addabbo, will allow

         22  that member who traveled to Houston to come, because

         23  he's scheduled to testify next, so you can hear from

         24  him directly.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If they signed

          3  up, they will --

          4                 MR. EISNER: Yes, he signed up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Then they will

          6  testify.

          7                 MR. EISNER: Good.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Questions from

          9  Council Member Barron. And I'll take this point to

         10  also welcome Council Member Simcha Felder for being

         11  here as well.

         12                 Council Member Barron.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         14  much, Mr. Chair.

         15                 I just wanted to say that at some

         16  point, and maybe this may not be the point, but

         17  we've got to use our subpoena power and make them

         18  get in here, because this is a very critical,

         19  critical issue.

         20                 Yesterday I asked Commissioner

         21  Doherty, I said how much, what percentage of the --

         22  does Waste Management get from the City contracts,

         23  he said 30 to 40 percent. So, if they're getting 30

         24  to 40 percent of the contracts coming from this

         25  City, and treating workers like this and trying to
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          2  replace workers and not giving them their fair share

          3  of health benefits and pension, then we need to get

          4  them in here in some kind of way. At least send a

          5  strong letter that we are not going to be associated

          6  with union busting and getting contracts, you know,

          7  from the City.

          8                 He even said, as I said I'd like to

          9  meet with you to discuss this further, and he said

         10  he was open for that. So, perhaps maybe the three of

         11  us can sit down with him and really discuss this

         12  matter which is critical that we not let them get

         13  away with just totally ignoring us, and not doing

         14  the right thing.

         15                 But I wanted to ask one of the

         16  panelists, what kind of a relationship has NYPD had

         17  with Waste Management, Inc.? That's another City

         18  agency that we need to be bringing up in here to see

         19  how they're relating to Waste Management, Inc., and

         20  workers; could you expound on that a little bit?

         21                 MR. ROMEO: Well, about a month prior

         22  to the Waste Management strike we had another

         23  smaller strike with another company. We were able to

         24  use sound device from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 a.m. We

         25  didn't have to pull a permit. We had fires, you
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          2  know, in the cans, keep the guys warm. BIC never

          3  showed up. NYPD never showed up. Waste Management,

          4  BIC is there day one, NYPD is actively working

          5  behind the scenes with Waste Management, and also

          6  their response time to Waste Management issues are

          7  immediate.

          8                 Waste Management has, you know, in

          9  our opinion, bought the NYPD, or the 90th Precinct,

         10  so-to-speak. I mean, there's no other way to say it.

         11                 MR. HELLSTROM: And just from the

         12  Laborers' perspective, the strike is being conducted

         13  in the South Bronx in an industrial park. We went

         14  through the proper channels in obtaining a sound

         15  permit, NYPD still came and confiscated our stuff.

         16  So, I mean, you know, it's like, it's a very cozy,

         17  it's a lover's relationship that they have with the

         18  company. It's unbelievable. I have never, and I'll

         19  tell you what, and it's the truth, in ten years of

         20  running labor demonstrations, and other activity on

         21  behalf of labor unions in New York City, I have

         22  never, ever witnessed this kind of collusion between

         23  a company and the NYPD in the ten years that I been

         24  doing this work. Absolutely.

         25                 MR. EISNER: By the way, Council
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          2  Member Barron, I want to point out, you were not

          3  here for the BIC Commissioner's testimony, and the

          4  answers that he gave to some of the questions to

          5  members of the Council.

          6                 One of the questions that was asked

          7  about was cooperation with the NYPD, and he said,

          8  well, we're not a law enforcement agency, and it's

          9  our understanding that they, you know, we're only a

         10  regulatory, we do licensing and stuff like that and

         11  we don't get involved in anything else.

         12                 And then there was a question that

         13  was asked about, he wanted to make sure that there's

         14  no violence that when a truck goes out, that an 813

         15  picketer doesn't go out and beat up the truck

         16  driver, the scab. And what we are permitted to do

         17  legally, both under the National Labor Relations

         18  Act, and under New York City Administrative Code, is

         19  to engage in ambulatory picketing, which means we

         20  have a right to follow the truck, and then when the

         21  truck driver gets to the stop, we have a right to

         22  get out of our car and put up the picket sign at the

         23  stop, as long as there were no threats made, and

         24  there were no threats made.

         25                 Consistently the New York Police
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          2  Department was told to tell us we may not engage in

          3  ambulatory picketing. And when Business Agent Lou

          4  Romeo would call me from the site and say, Gene, the

          5  stopping, you told me we had a right to do it, and I

          6  said here is chapter and verse from the NLRA and

          7  Administrative Code, and I sent him copies of the

          8  Code and he showed it to the police, they still

          9  wouldn't let him engage in ambulatory picketing. To

         10  this day I understand that.

         11                 MR. HELLSTROM: We're not even allowed

         12  to walk across the sidewalk with two people, not

         13  even a crowd. NYPD comes down there and threatens to

         14  lock us up for merely walking across the sidewalk.

         15                 We are contained in one area. Whether

         16  or not we're striking, walking or whatever, the NYPD

         17  is there every day, watching us, making sure that

         18  we're doing the right thing. But yet, the company

         19  can go ahead and do whatever they want. Their

         20  drivers pull out of that garage because they don't

         21  want to be seen, or, you know, heckled at. They

         22  don't even stop for the driveway, the careen right

         23  into traffic. The chase car follows them right

         24  through traffic, and all the while you have an NYPD

         25  officer standing across the street watching us.
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          2                 I can't tell you how many accidents

          3  almost happen down there because of the actions of

          4  Waste Management, but the NYPD, for some reason they

          5  have blinders on. And that's about all she wrote on

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, I think

          8  we need to really send a letter to the Commissioner

          9  and citing all of this stuff into that particular

         10  precinct, because this is a serious violation, and

         11  we shouldn't let them get away with that.

         12                 And then I think this is probably the

         13  toughest time for you all to be around here, because

         14  all the budget and all the craziness that's going

         15  on, but I think we need to do some follow-up on this

         16  and get certain meetings with those people in places

         17  that can really do something about settling this for

         18  the workers, and I'll be glad to work with you on

         19  that.

         20                 MR. ROMEO: If I might say, wouldn't

         21  the NYPD also be putting the City in harm's way when

         22  they're protecting say a civilian on their own? And

         23  if God forbid they were to get hurt during the

         24  course of that business, the City is also liable for

         25  a lawsuit.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's right.

          3                 MR. ROMEO: Well, these guys often,

          4  I'll tell you, drunk, because they're not on the

          5  NYPD clock, so they're often drunk, carrying their

          6  firearm, and you know, driving through New York City

          7  like they have sirens on their cars. They blow every

          8  single light, because we follow those guys, and I

          9  believe that they're a potential hazard later on for

         10  a lawsuit for this City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Before I get to a question from

         14  Council Member Simcha Felder, too, I've got two very

         15  quick questions. Number one, how many workers are

         16  negatively affected by what's going on here?

         17                 MR. EISNER: 110 from Local 813.

         18                 MR. HELLSTROM: I think the total is

         19  about 135 between the laborers and the teamsters,

         20  with the teamsters --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: 135 workers?

         22                 MR. HELLSTROM: The lion's share,

         23  correct.

         24                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: May I add that come

         25  November -- October 1st, the workers from the Harlem
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          2  rail yards will also be affected.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: October 1st?

          4                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: October 1st, right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And just

          6  recently, we'll try and summarize this briefly, but

          7  just recently I understand the National Labor

          8  Relations Board dismissed all unfair, again, I guess

          9  -- the fact that Waste Management has not done any

         10  unfair labor practices; how does that hurt you that

         11  the National Labor Relations Board comes down with a

         12  ruling like that?

         13                 MR. EISNER: I filed the unfair labor

         14  practice charges. As I said to you, I've been doing

         15  this kind of work for over 40 years, and I know an

         16  unfair labor practice when I see it, okay? Now, they

         17  had very, very clever negotiators on the other side.

         18  They told Mr. Romeo in the summer before the

         19  bargaining began, they said we had a peaceful

         20  relationship up until now, Lou, we're going to have

         21  a real problem, we're not going to be able to move

         22  on health care, we're going to have to make big

         23  changes on health care, and we're going to have to

         24  make big changes on the 40-hour work week.

         25                 Those are going to be the big issues
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          2  in our forthcoming negotiations.

          3                 For the next four months, this

          4  company went through the charade of bargaining on

          5  all issues. When it came down to November 30th and

          6  December 1st, where were they on health care and the

          7  40-hour work? Exactly where they were in August.

          8  Now, that is not good faith bargaining.

          9                 Now, unfortunately, we now have what

         10  is called the George Bush Labor Board down in

         11  Washington, and every time the Administration

         12  changes in Washington, you know, we had a Clinton

         13  board for eight years, I'll bet you that if there

         14  had been a Clinton board, we would have gotten a

         15  complaint issued against the company. But

         16  unfortunately, you have a Board down there, and they

         17  didn't think that -- they agreed with the company

         18  that the company had engaged in good faith

         19  bargaining.

         20                 Now, when you said they have

         21  dismissed all charges, that's not quite true. About

         22  two weeks ago, the company started to tell members

         23  of 813 how to get out of Local 813, how to get out

         24  of the union. They sent each worker a letter to

         25  their home saying I wish to resign from Local 813,
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          2  and they said if you want to cross the picket line,

          3  and you don't want to get fined, simply resign from

          4  the union, and here is how you do it.

          5                 In addition, the company said to the

          6  workers, you know, it's all over, guys, your job is

          7  finished, it's all over, it's gone. So, forget it.

          8  You have no more job.

          9                 Now, even if there were no unfair

         10  labor practice strike, Mr. Addabbo, that it's still

         11  an economic strike, and under an economic strike,

         12  the workers are not fired, they are simply replaced,

         13  and replaced means they have a right to their job

         14  when the strike is over.

         15                 So, I filed further unfair labor

         16  practice charges, because of these threats of it

         17  being made to the workers, and those charges are now

         18  being investigated by the regional office of the

         19  national laborers, so there are current charges that

         20  are pending.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So there are

         22  still pending charges.

         23                 MR. EISNER: Yes, there are.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, great.

         25  Okay.
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          2                 Council Member Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you,

          4  Chair Addabbo. And I apologize for not being here to

          5  hear all the testimony, because there are a number

          6  of hearings going on simultaneously. So, I don't

          7  want to comment on anything, even though I've been

          8  trying to look through some of the material,

          9  anything that I haven't heard.

         10                 But I do want to ask about something

         11  that I just heard. I think Mr. Romeo said that cops

         12  were bought; is that what you said?

         13                 MR. ROMEO: We're under that opinion,

         14  yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Now, that's a

         16  very serious accusation. I'm not telling you what to

         17  say or what not to say, but that's very, very

         18  serious. So, I just want to know for the record,

         19  whether you're saying that cops were bought, whether

         20  that's what you mean?

         21                 MR. ROMEO: Listen, that's a figure of

         22  speech, but that's a conclusion you can come to when

         23  the New York City Police Department does what they

         24  do during this time.

         25                 I mean, what they're doing now is
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          2  totally one-sided, and they're supposed to be an

          3  impartial party to this, and it's not.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. I want

          5  to make it clear that I can't form an opinion about

          6  what's going on today without doing more research.

          7  But I'm going to ask you for the last time, and I'm

          8  not trying to give you a hard time, but politicians

          9  go out and they have press conference and say

         10  sometimes, I'll talk about myself, sometimes we say

         11  stupid things, you know, as a figure of speech. This

         12  is a hearing, this is a very serious matter. You

         13  said cops were bought. I'm asking you whether you

         14  stand firmly by that or that's not what you really

         15  mean. You just meant by the fact, mere fact that

         16  they weren't doing what you think they should have

         17  been doing, that's the assumption.

         18                 MR. ROMEO: I think I answered that

         19  just before, it's a figure of speech.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         21                 MR. ROMEO: Can I prove that a New

         22  York City police officer or department or a local

         23  precinct was bought? But if you look at their

         24  actions every day, and how they conduct themselves

         25  every day, and how it's one sided every day, you
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          2  know, if it walks like a duck, it quacks like a

          3  duck, quack quack, and it's a duck.

          4                 (Applause).

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: All right.

          6                 I appreciate very much that all of

          7  the people have come to understand clearly how a

          8  duck quacks.

          9                 MR. ROMEO: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But I would

         11  also like to ask you --

         12                 MR. ROMEO: And we got a lot of ducks

         13  on that picket line, and we'd like the help of City

         14  Council to fix that.

         15                 If that's one thing you can do for us

         16  right now, is to tell the NYPD to back off and

         17  remain impartial. Because that's your job, to remain

         18  impartial, and not to be a one-sided factor or

         19  entity here, okay? And I would really stress that

         20  this Council get involved in the hiring tactic of

         21  Waste Management, because they should not be hiring

         22  off-duty NYPD police officers to protect their scab

         23  workers, when they're going to put themselves in

         24  harm's way, and before you know it, you're going to

         25  have a lawsuit, line of duty injuries and everything
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          2  else that comes along with that. It's going to cost

          3  us money to protect waste management. They have body

          4  guards paid for by the City of New York and it's

          5  ridiculous.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I am very

          7  impressed with your passion and your testimony, in

          8  terms of the proving whether what you're saying is

          9  right, I have no idea until I do a lot more

         10  research. Hold on.

         11                 MR. ROMEO: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I know you're

         13  holding the hearing, but right now it's my turn.

         14                 So, I'm not questioning whether

         15  you're right or wrong, and as I said from the

         16  outset, I can't do so because I wasn't here and I

         17  would like to learn a lot more.

         18                 Certainly if what you're saying is

         19  true, I would be as upset or more than you.

         20                 You said something else about

         21  somebody being drunk. You know, about somebody being

         22  drunk.

         23                 MR. ROMEO: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Now, who was

         25  drunk? I didn't catch that.
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          2                 MR. ROMEO: We have off-duty NYPD

          3  officers following these scab workers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And when they

          5  followed the scab workers, they're drunk?

          6                 MR. ROMEO: I'm not saying all of the

          7  are drunk, but a few of them that we ran into were

          8  intoxicated.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You mean if

         10  they quack like a duck and --

         11                 MR. ROMEO: No, I'm telling you they

         12  got Jack on their breath. You can smell it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         14                 MR. ROMEO: And they're out there

         15  talking to us, and they're loaded and that's how

         16  they conduct their business. Often times, it's a

         17  joke now after 13 weeks, we will actually go over

         18  and knock on their windows and remind them that they

         19  have to report to duty. That's what we do there now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         21                 MR. ROMEO: As a gimmick or a gag.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I want to make

         23  a recommendation. For me it would be very, very

         24  helpful in confirming what you said is true, because

         25  the accusations are very serious, both on being
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          2  bought, and I assume that's with money, right?

          3                 MR. ROMEO: I don't know. Maybe it's

          4  through the good meals that Waste Management is

          5  feeding them. I don't know how they're doing it, but

          6  they're having the New York City Police Department

          7  act in a fashion that we've never seen before. As my

          8  partner here Mike Hellstrom said, ten years we've

          9  never seen them act like this.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I understand.

         11                 MR. HELLSTROM: Can I just add

         12  something?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, let me

         14  just finish my --

         15                 MR. HELLSTROM: No, I think it's

         16  important to add something.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You go.

         18                 MR. HELLSTROM: You know, bought is a

         19  terminology, as far as monetary, but we all know the

         20  Police Department is some sort of club. Right? Some

         21  sort of club, once a cop, always a cop type of

         22  mentality. So, we have former NYPD officers now

         23  working as corporate security people inside Waste

         24  Management.

         25                 For instance, in the South Bronx in a
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          2  picket line we have a permit, we've been using

          3  sound-operated devices, we're playing music, we're

          4  talking on a microphone, we're being a little bit

          5  agitating, and that's the point of the sound device,

          6  to get our message across. The private security

          7  person is a retired lieutenant out of the precinct,

          8  which is the 41st Precinct make some phone calls,

          9  and the Captain himself comes down to the picket

         10  line and confiscates our sound equipment, and he's

         11  the one that issues the sound device to us.

         12                 Now, how they're being bought? I

         13  don't know. But I'm telling you, it's bad. It's so

         14  bad that the Department of Investigation should

         15  commence an investigation into the relationships

         16  that Waste Management is maintaining with every

         17  single City agency it comes in contact with. This is

         18  ludicrous what's going on here in New York City. And

         19  I tell you, when I say ten years, I've led 40,000

         20  workers in the middle of Midtown Manhattan around

         21  the Roy Kaye dispute and never once seen the Police

         22  Department act the way that it's acting today.

         23  Threatening peaceful picketers with arrest, for

         24  voicing their concern and their dispute to the

         25  public, it's absurd. It's complete, 100 percent
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          2  absurd.

          3                 Now, we all know that they're more

          4  powerful than we are, but I know, you know what? I

          5  was born in Brooklyn and I'll die in Brooklyn

          6  because I've been a resident of the City my whole

          7  friggin life and this is where I live, and they're

          8  supposed to protect me, not protect the company.

          9  Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I do

         11  appreciate your comments. I was born in Brooklyn,

         12  I'm not sure where I will die, but I want to make a

         13  number of suggestions that I think will help members

         14  help you.

         15                 One, I think if you are convinced,

         16  and I think you are, about the accusations you made,

         17  I think you should put in writing to the Department

         18  of Investigations, to the Commissioner, the

         19  accusations that you've made, and I think that

         20  Commissioner today is probably the best Commissioner

         21  the Department has had. She has impeccable

         22  integrity. It's no longer the Giuliani years at DOI,

         23  and I say that on the record. Under this

         24  Administration for the past four and a half years,

         25  if there's a beef that deserves investigation, this
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          2  Commissioner, Commissioner Rose Gil Hearn, has

          3  pursued things and without any exception, so file

          4  something in writing. Send us a copy of your

          5  complaint. I'd like that. I think that it should be

          6  on the record.

          7                 Number two, if you need cameras, I'm

          8  willing to donate video, one video camera, not ten,

          9  one.

         10                 MR. HELLSTROM: Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I mean it. I

         12  will donate a camera. Obviously, don't let them know

         13  you're filming. Film some of this stuff. I'd love

         14  for you to come in here and show -- and it's not

         15  that I'm questioning whether you're telling the

         16  truth, only God knows that, okay? Not me or anybody

         17  else. But it would be of extraordinary help to the

         18  Council, you know, to see. There's nothing like

         19  seeing it. I had issues regarding tickets in the

         20  neighborhood, somebody took pictures, tapes, there's

         21  nothing like it. There's just nothing that beats it.

         22  And video cameras are very cheap. By the way, I

         23  didn't promise to give you the latest model, I'm

         24  going to give you a good model, but really, if you

         25  can get some of this stuff, you know, in the future
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          2  on tape, it would be of tremendous help, and I look

          3  forward to working together with you.

          4                 MR. ROMEO: Thank you.

          5                 MR. HELLSTROM: Thank you. And I have

          6  one comment on that. We did actually videotape an

          7  incident where two of our guys were arrested, and

          8  the NYPD took the videotape. That actual videotape

          9  would have vindicated our members, but the camera

         10  remained and the videotape was gone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Listen, who

         12  said they were born in Brooklyn, you?

         13                 MR. HELLSTROM: Yes, sir.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: What's your

         15  name?

         16                 MR. HELLSTROM: Mike Hellstrom.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: All right, if

         18  you need help, you weren't born in Brooklyn, right?

         19                 MR. HELLSTROM: No, I was born in

         20  Brooklyn. Maimonides Hospital.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Oh, you, too?

         22  Well, then you should know that you make five copies

         23  of things for Heaven sake.

         24                 MR. HELLSTROM: No, no. You cannot

         25  make five copies when they got you against the wall.
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          2  They confiscated it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Oh, okay. You

          4  know what? I will donate, listen, we got a deal, I

          5  will donate two cameras. You know what I'm talking

          6  about, we don't have to spend the time on this. We

          7  got, if we have to get this down on tape, this is

          8  the stuff that we need on tape, and we want to help

          9  you, but you have to help us help you. You need ten

         10  cameras? We'll get you ten cameras, and we should

         11  tape the stuff and show that what you're saying is

         12  true. That's all.

         13                 MR. HELLSTROM: Well, I will say this,

         14  which is true. And, again, whether the police are

         15  being bought or not, Waste Management is permanently

         16  replacing New York City residents, and receiving

         17  $350 million of taxpayers' money. That is true. I

         18  have a letter from the company telling me so. So, if

         19  you'd like that at the end of the hearing, I'll give

         20  you that, and let the Department of Investigations

         21  start its inquiry about why we're giving out City

         22  contracts to a contractor who permanently replaces

         23  workers in New York City.

         24                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: Let me say, look,

         25  for the record, the complaint is being filed here
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          2  today right now. I mean, you could ask us to file it

          3  in paper in triplicate and submit it to whatever

          4  appropriate -- we are formally, okay, submitting

          5  complaint about the conduct of New York City

          6  agencies towards citizens of this City on behalf of

          7  corporations from Houston, Texas. That is an

          8  official complaint. See? And, again, we don't have

          9  the investigatory capacity. We don't have the agent.

         10  I think that the legislative branch of New York City

         11  government has the authority, has the ability to

         12  carry out those investigations.

         13                 So, please, don't suggest, you know,

         14  that we go see -- we're asking you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Excuse me.

         16  With all due respect, I think your lawyer, who seems

         17  very competent, has to discuss with the lawyer for

         18  the Council if this is sufficient. And that's fine.

         19  If not, I don't think it's a big deal to put

         20  something in writing to the Commissioner of --

         21                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: No, what I'm saying,

         22  since we're on the record, I am going on the record

         23  as saying that I do believe that Waste Management,

         24  Incorporated has bought elements of the City of New

         25  York to act in their behalf.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

          3  that. Understood.

          4                 MR. ALBA-PANAMA: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

          7  this panel for their time. I know it was a long

          8  time, but I thank their time, time well spent here

          9  today, and really putting a face onto this problem,

         10  so thank you very much for your time and testimony.

         11                 MR. HELLSTROM: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We will keep in

         13  touch.

         14                 Our next panel of four, Vince -- and,

         15  again, forgive me if I mispronounce the name, is it

         16  Vince Hardy? Vince, please step forward.

         17                 Syvester Needham?

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He's not here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: James Rogers,

         20  please step forward. Is there a Harold Mendez here?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

         22  just for the record, a couple of us are going to be

         23  excusing ourselves. We have to go to a Democratic

         24  Caucus meeting. I just wanted to make sure that

         25  those in attendance today by no means think that we
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          2  -- we're not off just to have lunch or something.

          3  We have the budget that we're finalizing and some of

          4  us have to get back to those deliberations.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair, Dale

          6  Smith is here from Local 813, instead of Syvester

          7  Needham. Dale Smith. He signed in.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, just to

          9  confirm, we have Vince Hardy, correct? Dale Smith

         10  has joined us. Mr. Mendez and James Rogers, correct?

         11                 Okay, thank you very much. Please

         12  state your name and give your testimony and we are

         13  going to stop the clock at two minutes.

         14                 MR. ROGERS: I just ask to go first

         15  because I have a memorial service to go to in

         16  Brooklyn, and I've got to get going. They were kind

         17  enough to yield. I appreciate it.

         18                 My name is James Rogers. I am with

         19  Region 9A, the United Auto Workers. Robert Mador is

         20  the Director, Julie Kirstiner is the Assistant

         21  Director, and on behalf of the United Auto Workers,

         22  I'm here on their behalf to make a statement to you

         23  in solidarity with the Laborers and with the

         24  Teamsters on this very issue.

         25                 Having just returned from the
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          2  quadrennial convention of the United Auto Workers,

          3  we are not at the UAW unfamiliar with the long-range

          4  tactics of corporations to force what they then call

          5  an impasse in order to take advantage of the workers

          6  and bring in replacement workers.

          7                 Right now you know what's going on at

          8  Delphi, people know what's going on at GM, the issue

          9  is very much on the top of the UAW's agenda, and

         10  that's why we came in here in solidarity today,

         11  because there's impasses and there's impasses. An

         12  impasse, which is planned out in advance for the

         13  express purpose of giving the company the right to

         14  bring in replacement workers, something that the UAW

         15  is not unfamiliar with, this is what happened in

         16  this case, it's obvious from all the evidence. I

         17  think the only question for you, Mr. Chairman, is if

         18  there's any role left for government in protecting

         19  workers.

         20                 The federal government has given up

         21  on workers. Is there any role for this government at

         22  all? And in that regard, and please tell me if I'm

         23  out of my bounds here, because I don't know what the

         24  rules are, and I don't know what's customary in this

         25  Council, I really do not, but if you have the
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          2  subpoena power to bring in the Commissioner,

          3  Department of Sanitation Commissioner, and sit that

          4  person down and ask him about the facts of this

          5  case, force them in here about the facts of this

          6  case, and you become convinced that this was planned

          7  in advance union busting, I would urge you,

          8  therefore, on behalf of the UAW, to urge that

          9  Commissioner to cancel that contract with Waste

         10  Management as illegal in its current form.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just before we

         12  get to the other testimony, a couple of things:

         13  Number one, I am sure there will be a definite

         14  follow-up on this Committee hearing from all three

         15  committees who are here today, the Contracts

         16  Committee, Labor Committee and Sanitation Committee.

         17                 The subpoena power that the City

         18  Council has is just that, we can force someone to

         19  come in here with a subpoena, that is true. We can't

         20  force them to speak. So, they would sit there and

         21  not answer every question that we ask them. So,

         22  although subpoena power gets them here, they still

         23  have the right not to speak, which obviously we'd

         24  rather deal with another situation and see how we

         25  can, other than force them to be here and not talk,
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          2  how we can work with them and obviously get them to

          3  be treating the workers more fairly and more

          4  impartial. So, that's something we're going to have

          5  to talk about.

          6                 Subpoena power? Yes, we have it, and

          7  we may do it in the future. I'm not ruling it out at

          8  all. That is the fact and the truth about the

          9  subpoena power, is that we can force them to be at

         10  that chair right there, but not speak at all.

         11                 MR. ROGERS: The only reason I brought

         12  that up was because the long-range plan of Delphi

         13  and the long-range plan of Waste Management is the

         14  war of attrition and time is of the essence.

         15                 The longer these replacements stay on

         16  duty, they're banking on your inattention over the

         17  longrun. That is what the federal government gives

         18  them. They're banking on that time frame. And the

         19  only reason I brought up a subpoena is because it's

         20  going to move things a lot faster than they've been

         21  moving, and these folks can't stay on strike any

         22  longer, they've got to get back to work.

         23                 So, you have the power to do that,

         24  and I would just urge that you do that. Thank you

         25  very much for your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          3                 Just please state your name and give

          4  your testimony, please.

          5                 MR. HARDY: Good afternoon. My name is

          6  Vince Hardy. I've been a member, a union member for

          7  about 16 years, 813, I've been working for Waste

          8  Management for a little more than ten years.

          9                 I'm the guy that Gene touched on,

         10  I've been to Houston for the shareholders committee

         11  meeting, and I spoke to the CEO of Waste Management,

         12  and we had a lengthy conversation, myself and Dale

         13  Smith. And we talked about some things, and one of

         14  the things that he said to me is, why should he

         15  treat -- this is the same CEO that Waste Management

         16  just gave him a million dollar bonus just because,

         17  and one of the things that he said to me is why

         18  should I treat you guys in New York different than

         19  anywhere else? And you know, I told him that we, in

         20  New York, we are different. You know, we work

         21  through blizzards, through heat, through all the

         22  conditions. And the Blizzard of '05, when the Mayor

         23  came on TV and said everybody should stay home,

         24  Waste Management called every person that we employ

         25  individually and told them to report to work in the
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          2  blizzard.

          3                 Some of us on the way to work in our

          4  cars, after we shoveled our cars out, got stopped by

          5  the police and asked where you going, you know? In

          6  the blizzard. But there's a local in Seattle, 174.

          7  They were paying approximately 300 and some odd

          8  dollars into their medical a month.  Waste

          9  Management just negotiated a contract with them

         10  where they're paying like $30 now or something like

         11  that. So, New York is a union town and we're the

         12  head, and Waste Management feels that if we kill the

         13  head, the body will fall. And that's why they're

         14  focusing here in New York.

         15                 There are some things in my testimony

         16  that you have that I'm not going to touch on because

         17  Lou Romeo and those guys before us touched on a lot

         18  of things. I'm not going to beat you over the head

         19  with the same thing, but there's just some things

         20  that I need to bring to the forefront of my own

         21  personal experience, such as when I was on the

         22  strike line, which I'm there every day, and all of

         23  my union brothers are, one of their replacement

         24  workers and one of the workers that's hired by Waste

         25  Management threatened myself and one of my
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          2  co-strikers with bodily harm and with his weapon.

          3  The officer that was on duty, we said, you know

          4  what? We want to make a report, because they call on

          5  us if we cross the street. We go to the officer and

          6  says we want to make a formal report. He calls his

          7  superior on his cell phone. He uses his cell phone

          8  so there is no record of it over the police radio.

          9  His superior shows up. I'm the victim. Walks right

         10  past us, walks right into Waste Management, talks to

         11  them first. Comes down, talks to us and says I'm

         12  just going to chalk this off as a misunderstanding,

         13  and walks away. This is the kind of support that we

         14  get from the Police Department.

         15                 Lou said he was born here in Brooklyn

         16  and everything. I was born in the streets literally.

         17  I was born, and my birth certificate says en route

         18  to hospital, I was born in the ambulance, en route

         19  to hospital. So these are my streets. You know, I

         20  pick up the garbage here, and I make the garbage

         21  here. Because my family, we go out and we spend

         22  money in the City. I'm a home owner, I have a wife

         23  and I have four kids. And I'm struggling right now.

         24  It's hard right now, you know? And I'm not coming

         25  here, and my union brothers, we're standing strong.
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          2  This tells you exactly what it's about if you have

          3  130 plus men that have been out for 13 weeks and not

          4  thinking about going back unless they give us a

          5  contract that we can go back to.

          6                 You know, Waste Management came here.

          7  They gave us nothing since they came here except a

          8  salary. They want to take sick days from us, they

          9  want to take personal days from us. I only have six,

         10  I only have seven sick days for the year. Seven.

         11  After that, they got disciplinary actions. They get

         12  written up. They get suspended three days with no

         13  pay, and you get terminated if you take another day

         14  off.

         15                 I can work one winter and catch a flu

         16  and wipe out my seven sick days in one shot. The

         17  men, we're sticking together, we're standing strong.

         18  And about 12 years ago, 12, 13 years ago, I met with

         19  the Mayor at that time, and he said he's going to

         20  clean up the private sanitation business from the

         21  guys in the suits and the Sergio Tosini suits, all

         22  right? The gangsters, the mobsters, organized

         23  crimes. So, I sit here today in 2006, approximately

         24  13 years later, and I ask you, Council, who is the

         25  organized crime now? They're wearing suits now, and
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          2  they're hurting guys with families. And excuse me if

          3  I get emotional, because this is really dear to me

          4  and this is 13 weeks of salary that we're never

          5  going to get back. I have a five-year-old son and

          6  he's graduating Friday, and he comes to me and he

          7  says, Dad, when I'm graduating, I want a brand new

          8  suit and some shiny shoes. How do I look at him and

          9  tell him that I can't afford to buy him a new suit?

         10  I'm not working. I got no money. I'm just

         11  maintaining my bills. I tell my fellow brothers

         12  about it, I show up to the strike line one day, and

         13  everybody chipped in and got a brand new suit and

         14  shoes for my son. This is what we do. This is how we

         15  take care of each other. And I'm sitting here now

         16  and I got a nice suit on, but you know I only wear

         17  this suit once in awhile when I go to church, but to

         18  be honest with you, this shirt is running up in the

         19  back, and I don't even know how to tie a tie. My

         20  neighbor tied my tie for me today. But I'm here

         21  today, and I'm asking you today, we need some help.

         22  You know, I can't tie a tie, but I can tell you

         23  seven ways to Sunday to do a garbage route, you

         24  know? Because that's what I do.

         25                 And this garbage business is not
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          2  something I grew up and said I want to be a garbage

          3  man. We're like the miners of New York, you know?

          4  And I'm a third generation garbage man. My uncle, he

          5  got killed on a garbage truck by a drunkin driver.

          6  My brother did 21 years in the private sanitation

          7  industry, and I got 16 plus years, and Waste

          8  Management is here to take all this away from us,

          9  and treat us like the garbage like we haul.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Hardy,

         12  before we get to the other testimony, first I do

         13  believe your time here is well spent. I really do

         14  appreciate you coming here and telling us, and I

         15  appreciate the tightness of your co-workers. I think

         16  that is an absolute show of support that your

         17  workers have. And again, I do believe there is

         18  strength in numbers, so I think somewhere along the

         19  line this will hopefully all work out, all because

         20  you stuck together.

         21                 But, again, I do appreciate your time

         22  and testimony and for being here today. Again, thank

         23  you very much. But stay here because we may have

         24  questions.

         25                 Yes.
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          2                 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon. Thank you

          3  for holding this hearing today. My name is Dale

          4  Smith. I have been employed by Waste Management as a

          5  driver for eight years. I have never been the

          6  subject of any discipline. During the period I have

          7  worked for Waste Management, I am married and I have

          8  three kids, and I got 125 brothers.

          9                 We've been on strike for 13 weeks.

         10  It's hard for me to sit here and talk to you about

         11  it because I get choked up when I think about how we

         12  stuck together out there, and how Waste Management

         13  just put their feet on our necks and consider us

         14  dogs, the way that they set the cops on us, police

         15  officers of this City on us. You might as well call

         16  us dogs, the way they did that. And when the guy

         17  from BIC was sitting here talking. I was sitting

         18  back there and I'm biting the palm of my hand,

         19  because I have beared (sic) witness to everything

         20  that's happened on the strike line. When we go out

         21  and we picket at night, I've been there. I've been

         22  there with a lot of my co-workers, and we go out

         23  there with a piece of card. That's the only weapon

         24  that we carry with us out there. And they look at us

         25  like we are armed. They treat us that way. I have
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          2  even been there when they talk about the guys that

          3  got arrested, and I was sitting in the car next to

          4  one of the gentlemen that got arrested. So, why was

          5  he arrested, and I wasn't arrested if he was doing

          6  some wrongdoing? We were, none of us, doing any

          7  wrongdoing. They just chose to pick us out and throw

          8  it at us. This is in the 90th Precinct in Brooklyn.

          9                 Now, that's one of the precincts that

         10  I got to say, whether you want to call it bought

         11  out, however you want to talk about it, there's

         12  something wrong with that picture to me. There's

         13  definitely something wrong there.

         14                 Now, the gentleman from BIC said that

         15  no one filmed anything? Myself, and there are about

         16  three other co-workers, we walked up on a BIC

         17  vehicle that was parked maybe a block and a half

         18  away from the job.

         19                 First of all, how is he parked a

         20  block and a half away from the job and not have any

         21  kind of equipment in the vehicle to monitor us for

         22  what we are doing? So, yes, they were filming us.

         23                 Where we walked up on the vehicle,

         24  the gentleman asked, what do you want? I said what

         25  do you mean what do we want? We see you over here,
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          2  you're watching us, we want to know what's going on.

          3  We're not doing anything here. And he responded in a

          4  way like we weren't even supposed to approach him.

          5  He got so angered that he even came out to say, you

          6  know, I'll shoot one of you guys. So, we're like

          7  wait a minute, what did you just say? You just

          8  threatened one of us.

          9                 So, we went back and we told one of

         10  the officers that was on the site at the time what

         11  transpired and you know what came out of it? Let me

         12  put it to you like this, he's in the 90th Precinct,

         13  crap came out of it. That's what came out of it.

         14                 So, when you hear about all this

         15  organized crime this, and all this organized crime

         16  that, yes, Waste Management is the biggest organized

         17  crime family here in the City right now.

         18                 There's also some things being said

         19  that I think was a little jumbled up, but I'm trying

         20  to break it up a little bit. Now, some of those

         21  officers that follow trucks are retired, but some of

         22  them are on duty. And that means that New York City

         23  is paying for those guys to treat us, the workers of

         24  this City, United States, citizens of this country,

         25  like dogs. And I think that's wrong.
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          2                 Now, I got a whole statement here

          3  that I was going to read, but it's impossible for me

          4  to do it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Smith.

          7                 Mr. Mendez.

          8                 MR. MENDEZ: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Harold Mendez. Any other guys speaking Spanish

         10  and English?

         11                 (Through an interpreter) His name is

         12  Harold Mendez. His native country is Honduras, he

         13  has lived in New York for the last 14 years. I am a

         14  shop steward representing my co-workers in the shop

         15  of Waste Management in the Bronx. We all are

         16  immigrants and look for a better and honest work.

         17  For the first ten years this company was called

         18  Gunhill. About eight years ago it was bought by a

         19  Corporation called Waste Management. I've started as

         20  a labor worker.  And now he is a heavy equipment

         21  operator. For years I've been a shop steward

         22  representing my co-workers at the shop, Local 108.

         23                 I'm a father of four kids. When I

         24  started with Local 108 they were being paid 5.75 an

         25  hour. The strike started and then the -- get his
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          2  money for his labor, in other words. The union came

          3  in, now he has like pension for retirement for his

          4  family and now he's getting paid 17 an hour. It will

          5  be good to know there is other labor worker that get

          6  paid up to $30 an hour. We work in a very dangerous

          7  industry where a lot of contamination and accidents

          8  have occurred.

          9                 A few years ago one of our laborers

         10  died in a machine that mulls the wood.

         11                 With the representation of 108, me

         12  and my co-workers have been able to give a better

         13  life to our families and a better future with more

         14  possibilities. With the aim to do a good labor -- I

         15  can't find the word -- oh, to end the day with a

         16  full work day well done and complete. After three

         17  years and a few months, we all decided to go on

         18  strike. After all the other options of obtaining a

         19  just contract, Waste Management then refused to do

         20  necessary contributions for our medical and the

         21  health of us. The company argument was that they

         22  could not give us that because they had to renovate

         23  the shop and buy new equipment.

         24                 After 45 days we return after the

         25  strike, we agreed to pay our insurance and give a
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          2  small raise.

          3                 We at the shop don't get paid as much

          4  as other workers that do the same labor for Waste

          5  Management at other shops just miles away.

          6                 On the 27th of April we were forced

          7  to go on strike. After Waste Management made it

          8  clear to us that they intended to pay the

          9  contribution towards our pension, and forces (sic)

         10  to their medical plan, which on our behalf we have

         11  to contribute a lot of parts to our own.

         12                 Waste Management has maintained us

         13  and our families to their demands, which is a

         14  company that makes billions of dollars in business

         15  off our labor. I will repeat myself. We work in

         16  dangerous conditions and hard conditions. I am here

         17  today to ask you for what is justice. For us it's an

         18  insult that our labor is being done by laborer

         19  workers, white, imported from other states.

         20                 We that live in this City from the

         21  South Bronx come here to ask for your support --

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Interpreting)

         23  to ask for support for ourselves and our labor

         24  unions.

         25                 MR. MENDEZ: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well done, Mr.

          3  Mendez. Well done.

          4                 I want to thank this panel very much

          5  for the first time mentioning one thing to Mr.

          6  Hardy, Mr. Smith and Mr. Mendez. That is the

          7  children that are affected by it. I know we have 135

          8  workers total affected by it directly, but there is

          9  another face to this and that's the family, the

         10  wives and the children who are affected by this. And

         11  I appreciate you bringing that out to us. Thank you

         12  very much, and we will definitely keep in touch.

         13                 Thank you very much. I would like to

         14  thank the panel for their time and testimony.

         15                 The next four for the next panel, if

         16  they are still here, it's May Chen. Is she not here?

         17  I don't know if she's still here. She did submit,

         18  yes, I know. David Galarza. Is David here? Please

         19  step forward. Angel Veva. Please step forward.

         20  Michelle Pullaro. Is there a Michelle Pullaro here?

         21  No? Sharon Black. Is Sharon Black here? Is there an

         22  F. Schneider, III here? Please step forward. That's

         23  our next panel of four.

         24                 I want to thank you all for being

         25  here today. If you'll just state your full name and
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          2  give your testimony, please.

          3                 MR. GALARZA: Sure. Good afternoon. My

          4  name is David Galarza. I'm with the Civil Service

          5  Employees Association, Local 1000, of the American

          6  Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.

          7  And I'm really glad the panel before me actually

          8  spoke because they did add that human dimension,

          9  human touch, added a human face to this whole debate

         10  and this conversation that's going on in Waste

         11  Management.

         12                 What I wanted to accomplish with my

         13  testimony was actually present another face, that's

         14  the face of the unorganized laborers that work

         15  throughout the City in places like Waste Management

         16  that are now represented by a labor union.

         17                 And I'm absolutely sure that Waste

         18  Management CEO David Steiner never had the pleasure

         19  of meeting somebody like Milton Rocano, although

         20  there are literally thousands, if not hundreds of

         21  thousands of men and women like him whose daily

         22  labor have made Mr. Steiner a very rich man in the

         23  garbage industry.

         24                 Milton Rocano was a 20-year-old

         25  arrival to New York City from the City of Cuenca,
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          2  Ecuador. He would get up at 5:00 a.m. and work six

          3  days a week sorting concrete and metal and other

          4  debris for the City Recycling Corporation, a

          5  non-union company.

          6                 Milton would often complain to his

          7  friends and family about his job, it's dirty,

          8  exhausting work, the kind of work reactionaries

          9  across this country would tell you that immigrants

         10  are taking away from Americans. It's the kind of

         11  work that rich companies with wealthy CEO's and

         12  greedy shareholders are hell bent on creating all

         13  across the country. Work that offers no raises,

         14  representation, safety, vacation, sick days, health

         15  insurance benefits, retirement benefits and

         16  stability. Jobs that are every day robbing

         17  hardworking families from promise that American used

         18  to represent.

         19                 Milton had no trouble finding this

         20  dead end and dangerous job but like most immigrants,

         21  he dreamed of using it as a springboard to better

         22  employment, to better opportunities, perhaps a

         23  better paying and safer union job that would provide

         24  him and his family with a comfortable living and

         25  good benefits now and eventually secure time in the
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          2  future. Good union jobs like those that are now

          3  under attack by companies like Waste Management.

          4                 He was the fifth of six siblings born

          5  and raised in Ecuador, and the third to move to New

          6  York City to earn some money, arriving seven months

          7  ago. He shared an apartment in Queens, and spent

          8  most of his free time with his family.

          9                 Late April of this year, Milton got

         10  up at 5:00 a.m. on Saturday morning to go to work.

         11  About six hours later, he would be buried alive

         12  while working in an open-top tractor-trailer sorting

         13  garbage. When he failed to come home, family members

         14  tried in vain to get answers from his company, and

         15  the company just looked the other way and exhibited

         16  nothing but a gross disregard for his whereabouts.

         17                 Milton's mangled, decomposing body

         18  was found several days later at a Long Island

         19  landfill. Video surveillance showed at the plant

         20  that another vehicle pulled up to the trailer that

         21  he was working and dumped three loads of garbage on

         22  top of him.

         23                 Milton's sister Maria Taza said it

         24  best, "They left him like a dog to die." Indeed,

         25  this is how unorganized workers are being treated in
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          2  just about any industry, be it recycling or retail,

          3  Waste Management or Walmart. Without a union,

          4  workers do not have a voice or much of a choice.

          5  That's why corporations fight so hard and spend so

          6  much to destroy unions like David Steiner is trying

          7  to do with the union represented workers at Waste

          8  Management.

          9                 Milton might still be with us today

         10  had he worked for a responsible company with a good

         11  union, the would have demanded the very best in

         12  workplace safety protocols. At the least, his death

         13  would have been met with calls for a comprehensive

         14  investigation, adequate compensation for his family

         15  and demands for improved safety by a union, but no

         16  such things have happened. Instead, his family just

         17  got him back in the casket, a 20-year-old young man

         18  who tried to come to this country to make the best

         19  for his family and himself.

         20                 Waste Management and other

         21  corporations were seeking government contracts in

         22  the City, as has been said better by most folks

         23  before me, in the City need to be reminded by this

         24  City Council that precious tax dollars will not be

         25  spent on companies that treat their workers like
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          2  garbage.

          3                 Our workforce is our greatest

          4  commodity, let's treat our workers with the dignity

          5  and respect every human being deserves, workers'

          6  rights are human rights. Thank you.

          7                 MR. VERA: Good afternoon. My name is

          8  Angel Vera. I would like to thank the City Council

          9  for giving me the opportunity to testify here today.

         10                 I am the environmental and housing

         11  justice organizer at Make The Road By Walking, the

         12  organization with over 1,700 members located in

         13  Bushwick, Brooklyn. And I am also a long-time

         14  resident in Bushwick. Like other communities that

         15  suffer the consequence of waste management transfer

         16  station, Bushwick is a low-income community, Latino,

         17  African-American residents.

         18                 Waste Management, Inc., is ruining

         19  Bushwick's environment and putting community members

         20  to work there at the great health risk.

         21                 Bushwick has the highest levels of

         22  asthma in Brooklyn. Living next to a transfer

         23  station means constant noise, terrible odors and

         24  more traffic. The trucks go in and out over the

         25  transfer stations all day and night, and they are
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          2  running their engines while waiting on City streets.

          3                 This is environmental racism. How

          4  long do our children have to trouble to breathe

          5  before the Mayor institutes a no-discriminatory

          6  policy in placing waste transfer stations? We need

          7  the City to require waste haulers to use clean fuel

          8  trucks, and we need the City to enclose all transfer

          9  stations and operate them under negative pressure

         10  and other control.

         11                 Also, we think it's important for

         12  Waste Management to respect the rights of workers in

         13  our community. It's an outrage that they've taken to

         14  hire replacement workers to displace striking

         15  workers who are fighting for fair wage and working

         16  conditions.

         17                 I urge you to take steps to ensure

         18  that Waste Management respects the communities it

         19  does business in, and the workers that it employs.

         20  The health of our communities depends on it.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MS. BLACK: My name is Sharon Black

         23  and I'm here as a representative of the May 1st

         24  Coalition for Immigrant Rights, which was one of the

         25  many major coalitions that held the demonstrations
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          2  that took place for immigrant rights for this City

          3  and around the country.

          4                 We wanted to really strongly go on

          5  record as supporting the Waste Management workers.

          6  And also I wanted to add a note that I heard when

          7  there was testimony here today, and I think that the

          8  City Council should consider really going on record

          9  as opposing any kind of anti-immigrant or

         10  discriminatory or insulting racist remarks or

         11  behavior on the part of the Waste Management

         12  Corporation. This in itself has to be some violation

         13  of City ordinances, it's something that I think the

         14  City Council and the Commission should go on record

         15  against.

         16                 The second part, and I'm going to be

         17  very short is, I also wanted to testify here today

         18  really as a nurse who sees patients in their

         19  apartment and residence across the City of New York,

         20  particularly in West Harlem but throughout

         21  Manhattan, and I wanted to say very briefly that

         22  it's always baffled me that we do not afford the

         23  kind of respect and compensation for those who are

         24  really what I consider the front line, in terms of

         25  the health and well being of our entire population,
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          2  and that is those people who worked with Sanitation

          3  every day. I mean, it's certainly true that doctors

          4  and nurses do a lot in terms of health care,

          5  certainly doctors sacrifice. They take eight years

          6  out of their life to go to school. But the

          7  Sanitation workers sacrifice their lives and

          8  sometimes their limbs and their entire, you know,

          9  livelihood and families to do the work really that

         10  is most crucial in maintaining the health of this

         11  City. And I mean this very seriously, because a

         12  thousand, a million doctors cannot combat the

         13  diseases that the Sanitation workers are responsible

         14  in terms of preventing. Without them, many, many,

         15  many people would be at risk. So, I sort of want to

         16  appeal to common sense to justice, that the workers

         17  who are literally sacrificing their lives in these

         18  jobs be afforded decent just compensation and also

         19  respect on their jobs.

         20                 And last, and I'll end with this,

         21  that I think that our entire community is going to

         22  lose if these workers lose. If the wages are lowered

         23  for one, the wages for everyone will be lowered, and

         24  ultimately the impact will be felt throughout New

         25  York, and probably nationally because I was
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          2  enlightened by one of the union brothers that the

          3  Waste Management company is really a billion dollar

          4  company that extends way beyond the State of New

          5  York.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

          8  Black. Thank you.

          9                 Mr. Schneider.

         10                 MR. SCHNEIDER: Yes, thank you. Good

         11  afternoon. My name is Frederick Schneider. I'm a

         12  Business Agent for Laborers Union, Local 108, also a

         13  delegate to the Mason Tenders District Council for

         14  Greater New York and Long Island.

         15                 Many of my brothers and sisters here

         16  today have touched on many points. I have written a

         17  statement, as pretty much everything has been said.

         18  What I'd like to say, though, is this, is that I'm

         19  36 and a half years old. My father is retired from

         20  the New York City Transit Authority for 16 and a

         21  half years. Therefore, I've been union my whole

         22  life, because everything I have is because of the

         23  union contract, what was negotiated for, the

         24  struggles that the men and the women went through

         25  many years ago. And what we're going through today
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          2  is no different than then, and all of us have to

          3  stand strong because good will prevail over evil.

          4                 See, something that these rich

          5  corporate companies don't understand, and like the

          6  MTA doesn't understand, you cannot buy people power

          7  at Home Depot. You cannot buy it at Leows. People

          8  power, union power. United we stand, divided we

          9  fall. We are standing united. We will not fall. We

         10  will win. We thank all of you for your time this

         11  afternoon. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         13  much. I thank you all for your time and testimony.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 Siddhartha Sanchez, step forward.

         16  Marian Feinberg. Ms. Feinberg. Bill Henning. Mr.

         17  Bill Henning. Joseph Kirch. Is there a Joseph Kirch

         18  here? Is there a Darlene Lawson? Ms. Lawson? Okay.

         19  And Joseph Kirch? No? Okay. This will be the last

         20  panel for today. Again, I want to thank you all for

         21  being here. Please state your name for the full

         22  record, and give your testimony.

         23                 MR. SANCHEZ: My name is Siddhartha

         24  Sanchez, and I'm here representing Congressman Jose

         25  E. Serrano, 16th Congression District. I'm here to
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          2  present a letter that was mailed to the Vice

          3  President of Waste Management on May 26th.

          4                 Dear Mr. Yearwood:

          5                 I am writing on behalf of Teamsters

          6  Local 813 and Laborers Local 108 who have brought to

          7  my attention the current labor dispute with your

          8  company. It is my understanding that on April 4,

          9  2006, after attempting to negotiate a fair deal for

         10  over five months, the membership of Local 813 called

         11  a strike.

         12                 It has come to may attention that

         13  other national waste management corporations

         14  operating in the New York City area, such as Allied

         15  Waste, BFI, and IESI have agreed to new labor

         16  agreements that continue to pay for overtime after

         17  eight hours and fully underwrite the cost of health

         18  insurance for employees. As such, it would seem that

         19  Waste Management would not be put at a competitive

         20  disadvantage under a similar labor agreement.

         21                 In addition, on December 31st, 2005,

         22  a second contract between Waste Management and LIUNA

         23  Local 108, expired. On April 27, 2006, after several

         24  meetings with your company failed to produce a

         25  mutually acceptable settlement, LIUNA Local 108
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          2  similarly called a strike.

          3                 With over $350 million in public

          4  contracts, including the city contract for municipal

          5  Bronx waste based out of the Harlem River Yards, it

          6  is imperative to the environmental health of my

          7  district and the City at large that labor

          8  negotiations are conducted in good faith so as not

          9  to impact the efficient removal and processing of

         10  waste. Moreover, to dispute the right to

         11  company-sponsored health insurance for individuals

         12  whose work involves coming into contact with

         13  pathogens, toxics and dangerous materials is of

         14  great concern to me and poses a further threat to

         15  the health and well-being of these workers and their

         16  families.

         17                 In the best interest of worker

         18  safety, community health and employee and employer

         19  relations I strongly urge you to resolve this

         20  dispute and come to an amicable agreement that is

         21  fair for both parties involved.

         22                 Sincerely yours, Jose E. Serrano,

         23  Member of Congress.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Sanchez,

         25  thank you very much. Can we just submit a copy of
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          2  that letter to the Committee, please.

          3                 MR. SANCHEZ: Of course.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That would be

          5  most helpful.

          6                 Ms. Feinberg, before you go, just a

          7  little housekeeping here. We were joined by three

          8  Council members who unfortunately did have to go

          9  down to a caucus meeting. Council Member David

         10  Weprin, Council Member Seabrook and Council Member

         11  Annabel Palma. They were all here and they signed in

         12  and, unfortunately, they had to leave.

         13                 Ms. Feinberg.

         14                 MS. FEINBERG: Hi. Thank you very

         15  much. I also just really want to thank you and the

         16  other members who are here today because the work

         17  that you did, and the level of seriousness that you

         18  took this issue and the kind of questioning that you

         19  did really kind of restores my faith in the

         20  democratic process. You were really incredible.

         21                 My name is Marian Feinberg. I'm here

         22  representing my community-based organization called

         23  For A Better Bronx. We've kind of been on and off at

         24  war with Waste Management in one form or another for

         25  many years, mostly because of their environmental
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          2  practices, at several sites in the South Bronx, but

          3  we're here today to really support the striking

          4  workers.

          5                 Number one, we really want to be

          6  clear that although many times both the media and

          7  analysts, we try to divide the interest of workers

          8  and the interest of communities and sort of set them

          9  apart from each other. We really believe that

         10  workers getting good wages and good health benefits

         11  really is an important factor for our communities,

         12  they are members of our communities, and that their

         13  well-being contribute to the health and social

         14  stability and economy of our communities, and is

         15  integral to that.

         16                 Two, that the behavior of this

         17  company is consistent from its environmental

         18  practices to its labor practices, to its, you know,

         19  to its manipulation that's helped sort of destroy

         20  the free market in the waste industry in the City

         21  and all across the board they've been a part of it.

         22                 Three, we want to really also state,

         23  which I think people touched on a little before,

         24  about sort of what constitutes a crime, that the BIC

         25  sort of talks about investigating threatening and
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          2  unruly behavior by strikers and investigating the

          3  role of organized crime, but the crimes that Waste

          4  Management has been involved with, which is an

          5  assault on the health of a community, an assault on

          6  worker rights, an assault on the free market, an

          7  assault on the taxpayers of the City of New York,

          8  certainly constitutes as much of a crime as any

          9  other crime that they might investigate.

         10                 And just quickly, number four, that

         11  if Sanitation and if the Health Department are going

         12  to get involved in declaring a health emergency, in

         13  terms of garbage, the first place they have to look

         14  at is their own selves, because the Department of

         15  Sanitation, the level of garbage pick-up that we

         16  receive in the South Bronx, itself constitute a

         17  health emergency. And overflowing garbage cans all

         18  along the streets constitute an emergency in terms

         19  of rat control and a whole bunch of other things.

         20                 So, look to your own house first,

         21  Sanitation Commissioner.

         22                 And I'm sorry, just one more thing.

         23  That we really want to encourage you to take a look

         24  at how the contracts are being done in the City in

         25  terms of really strengthening fair labor practices
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          2  for contracts and environmental oversight also in

          3  those, and to also take a look at how this process

          4  of monopolization happened, and the role of the

          5  former Administration in setting that up.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

          7  Feinberg. Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Henning.

          9                 MR. HENNING: Thank you, Mr. Council

         10  member. I am Bill Henning, Vice President of Local

         11  1180, Communications Workers of America, and we're

         12  here today testifying in solidarity with our

         13  brothers and sisters in the Teamster and Laborers

         14  Unions and their ongoing labor disputes with Waste

         15  Management.

         16                 Waste Management has made it seem

         17  that the dispute centers around reigning in its

         18  health care costs. Fifty companies have contracts

         19  with these two unions, 96 percent have determined

         20  that they can turn a healthy profit and still

         21  participate in union benefit programs. If 48 out of

         22  50 companies can do this, why can't Waste

         23  Management? The simple answer is they can.

         24                 Of course they can, but what they

         25  want to do is bust the union. However, both unions
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          2  have made compromises to Waste Management on Health

          3  Care to try to resolve the work stoppages. Waste

          4  Management's responses to the union compromises,

          5  hiring permanent replacement workers to strip the

          6  striking workers of their jobs.

          7                 It is clear to any observer that

          8  Waste Management's actual goal in this dispute is to

          9  bust the unions. If Waste Management can break the

         10  union and union family of New York City, the rest of

         11  the United States will fall like Dominoes.

         12                 Currently scabs have been brought in

         13  from Pennsylvania and Ohio to replace the strikers.

         14  Virtually all white, replacing an overwhelmingly

         15  black, Latino and Caribbean workforce. And now

         16  systematically replacing permanent workers with

         17  permanent replacement workers.

         18                 Waste Management processes two-thirds

         19  of the City's municipal waste stream. They have

         20  contracts with the City in the hundreds of millions

         21  of dollars annually. Waste Management's 2005 annual

         22  report shows they have assets of $21 billion.

         23  Twenty-one billion, with a B, a sad state of affairs

         24  for a company the City of New York gives hundreds of

         25  millions of dollars to each year.
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          2                 We urge the City Council to fulfill

          3  its oversight responsibilities to ensure that

          4  companies who receive our collective tax dollars

          5  behave in a way that does not diminish our standards

          6  of living.

          7                 Union busting is despicable under any

          8  circumstances. In a union town like New York, we all

          9  have a stake in this battle that pits a solid

         10  working class lifestyle against a colossus of

         11  garbage. Please do not allow them to trash our way

         12  of life.

         13                 MS. LAWSON: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Darlyne Lawson. I'm the Recording Secretary for

         15  Local 100 of the Transport Workers Union. We stand

         16  in solidarity with our brothers who are on strike

         17  today.

         18                 This issue really is about what kind

         19  of City we're going to have. This is the test of our

         20  values. How do we treat people who do the work

         21  others won't do says something about us as a people.

         22                 There is no question that workers who

         23  handle millions of tons of commercial waste every

         24  year keep New York livable. It is hard, dirty, even

         25  dangerous work. New York needs it. It is honorable

                                                            166

          1  COMMITTEE ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  work, and thanks to unionization and New York

          3  prevailing industry standards, it is work that gives

          4  those who do it the chance to provide a better

          5  future for their children.

          6                 We need this Council to take notice

          7  of one of the significant issues of public policy.

          8  These union jobs with union benefits are the anchors

          9  of communities. When we read about the disappearing

         10  of middle class communities, we are really reading

         11  about the disappearing of union jobs.

         12                 Now Waste Management wants to take

         13  these jobs out of the good job category and put them

         14  into new economy jobs category. If this was only a

         15  problem of these employees, we would still stand

         16  with them, but it is a threat to the kind of City we

         17  should all be working for.

         18                 So, it is a proper issue for this

         19  Council to act on. Waste Management holds about 350

         20  million in public contracts. And I'm saying $350

         21  million in public contracts that it's failing to

         22  fulfill because it has forced its employees into

         23  striking at great personal cost to the employees and

         24  their families. And, of course, of tens of millions

         25  of dollars to the company.
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          2                 Waste Management is using public

          3  money to drive down public standards. There is

          4  something wrong with this picture. It is up to our

          5  public representatives to set things right. You have

          6  heard the details from people intimately involved,

          7  the overtime rule changes and health benefit

          8  changes. All told, Waste Management proposes to

          9  grind an extra ten to 15,000 a year out of each

         10  employee. The employees will have less to spend

         11  here. They will pay less in taxes here. Neighborhood

         12  stores will suffer. New York will suffer.

         13                 In contrast, competitors in New York,

         14  such as Allied/BFI and EISI continue to pay overtime

         15  and fully pay the cost of health insurance for

         16  covered employees.

         17                 Is it in the interest of New York for

         18  a rogue company to lower the living standards of New

         19  Yorkers? No.

         20                 Is it in the interest of New York for

         21  vital work of handling waste modern life creates to

         22  be devalued? No. It is good public policy to turn --

         23  is it good public policy to turn a blind eye to the

         24  misuse of public contracts? No.

         25                 Waste Management, I mean Waste
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          2  Mismanagement, is a real danger to New York City.

          3                 The Transport Workers Union Local 100

          4  calls on New York City Council to defend New York by

          5  sending a loud and clear message to Waste Management

          6  that this kind of behavior is not acceptable here in

          7  New York City. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

          9  Lawson. Thank you, Ms. Lawson. You have ended the

         10  hearing on a high note. So, thank you very much.

         11                 I appreciate the solidarity of other

         12  unions sticking with this issue. So, again, I thank

         13  you for your time and testimony as well. And thank

         14  the Congressman, Mr. Serrano, very much for his

         15  efforts as well.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 Ladies and gentlemen, that concludes

         18  our hearing today. Now the next step is I will get

         19  together with the other Chairs and the staff of the

         20  other Committees, and we will address this issue by

         21  ways of letters, phone calls, whatever it takes,

         22  even possible legislation. The bottom line is we

         23  have an issue here that affects our City workforce

         24  and their families, and it needs to be addressed. I

         25  do not like to hear when the City agencies do not
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          2  treat people fairly. It bothers me tremendously. So,

          3  we will follow this up and we will let you know of

          4  our outcomes. So, thank you very much. Your time

          5  here today is well spent.

          6                 Meeting adjourned.

          7                 (The following written testimony is

          8  read into the record.)
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         18

         19                 My name is May Y. Chen, and I am an

         20  International Vice President of UNITE HERE. My union

         21  represents private sector workers in the apparel

         22  manufacturing, food service, laundry, and hotel and

         23  casino industries.

         24                 We stand united with the striking

         25  workers represented by IBT, Local 813 at Waste
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          2  Management of New York, because this company has not

          3  only failed to bargain in good faith, but also has

          4  been totally unresponsive to the workers' main

          5  concern... that is, quality, affordable health

          6  insurance.

          7                 Rooted in the private sector, my

          8  union is constantly engaged in collective

          9  bargaining, with multi-employer associations or with

         10  large corporations that have multiple, diverse

         11  facilities and departments, or with small individual

         12  employers. We engage the union workers in this

         13  process through meetings, contract committees, and

         14  many activities to express their concerns and

         15  proposals to management. It is very disturbing to

         16  read the bargaining notes about Waste Management,

         17  their lack of good faith bargaining, and the

         18  imposition of a "final offer" without ratification

         19  from the union members.

         20                 The issue of health care is so

         21  critical to every collective bargaining agreement.

         22  All unions are bargaining for health insurance in

         23  the midst of a crisis, where costs are sky-rocketing

         24  and too many working families are not insured.

         25                 This environment is dragging everyone
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          2  down in the so-called "race to the bottom." It is an

          3  important victory if we hold onto what we have. That

          4  is the central demand of the Waste Management

          5  workers - the right to keep the health plan they

          6  have enjoyed for years. Most of the companies in

          7  their industry have accomplished this, but Waste

          8  Management refuses, and so the workers are paying

          9  dearly, struggling for weeks on a strike line, for

         10  this simple goal.

         11                 Last night, I attended a very

         12  interesting meeting between several unions and city

         13  representatives about the increasing problems of the

         14  working poor, and the decline of the middle class in

         15  the City. New York City spends $300 million on

         16  contracts with Waste Management, and the City must

         17  use its economic and moral authority to support the

         18  striking workers to defend a decent standard of

         19  living for themselves and their families.

         20                 The union movement has a slogan, "an

         21  injury to one is an injury to all" - and the

         22  members, officers and staff of UNITE HERE will

         23  support the Waste Management workers and their union

         24  until they achieve their goal of a fair union

         25  contract.
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          2                 Thank you for holding this hearing

          3  and I hope we can count on the City's support the

          4  Waste Management workers and their union until they

          5  achieve their goal of a fair union contract. Thank

          6  you for holding this hearing, and I hope we can

          7  count on the City's support for this issue.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 4:25 p.m.)
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